
 

 

 

Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors 
City of Texarkana, Arkansas 

216 Walnut Street 

Agenda - Monday, July 03, 2023 - 6:00 PM 

 

 

**Hotel/Motel/Restaurant Mixed Drink Permit - WORKSHOP - 5PM** 

 

Call to Order 

Roll Call 

Invocation given by Director Danny Jewel 

Pledge of Allegiance led by City Planner Mary Beck 

CITIZEN COMMUNICATION 

A limit of five (5) minutes per person is allotted for citizens to express their concerns to the 

Board of Directors, with a maximum of fifty (50) minutes reserved for Citizens 

Communication.   The Board of Directors cannot respond to citizens’ concerns during this time. 

Please fill out a Citizen Communication Card with your name and contact information for the 

City Clerk's records. 

PROCLAMATION(S) 

1. Proclamation celebrating July as Parks & Recreation Month presented to Parks & Recreation 

Director Adam Dalby  

PRESENTATION(S) 

2. Presentation of the City of Texarkana, Arkansas Employee Service Awards. (ADMIN)  

CONSENT 

3. Approval of the minutes of the rescheduled regular meeting June 20, 2023.  (CCD) City Clerk 

Heather Soyars 

4. Adopt a Resolution authorizing the Acting City Manager to enter into a contract for the 

purchase of chemicals for water and wastewater treatment. (TWU) Executive Director Gary 

Smith 

 



 

REGULAR 

5. Adopt a Resolution conditionally authorizing the City of Texarkana, Arkansas Public 

Facilities Board to proceed with the issuance of approximately $22,000,000 of Waterworks 

Facilities Revenue Bonds. (TWU) Executive Director Gary Smith   

6. Adopt a Resolution amending the Rules of Order and Procedure Manual for the Board of 

Directors of the City of Texarkana, Arkansas. (BOD) 

7. Adopt an Ordinance authorizing the Acting City Manager to enter into an agreement for the 

purchase of thirty-seven (37) Watchguard Body Cameras and related software, hardware, 

licenses, and warranties. (TAPD) Captain James Atchley  

The applicant requests an emergency clause. An emergency clause requires a separate and 

distinct vote of the board and is valid only if there is a two-thirds vote of approval by the 

board. (Hdbk. Const. Amend 7) 

8. Adopt an Ordinance to rezone a parcel of land located on the Northeast corner of Grand 

Avenue and 37th Street from R-3 Low-density residential to R-4 Medium-density residential. 

(WARD 4) (PWD-Planning) City Planner Mary Beck 

The applicant requests an emergency clause. An emergency clause requires a separate and 

distinct vote of the board and is valid only if there is a two-thirds vote of approval by the 

board. (Hdbk. Const. Amend 7) 

9. Adopt an Ordinance to approve the City of Texarkana, Arkansas, Comprehensive Plan. 

(PWD-Planning) City Planner Mary Beck 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS' COMMENTARY 

NEXT MEETING DATE: July 17, 2023 

ADJOURN 

 

2023 City Calendar 

Gateway Farmers Market - Open Tuesdays, Thursdays, Saturdays - 7AM- Noon 

Sesquicentennial Ball – July 8th 

Gateway Farmers Market National Farmers Market Week - Saturday, July 15th - 7AM - Noon 

Gateway Farmers Market Salsa Contest - Saturday, August 5th - 7AM - Noon 

Gateway Farmers Market Fall Tailgates & Tables - Saturday, September 16th - 8AM - 2PM 

Universal Vibe - Saturday, November 4th - 10AM - 10PM 

Gateway Farmers Market Holiday Market - Saturday, November 18th - 10AM - 2PM 

Founders’ Week Celebration – December 4th – 10th 

Texarkana Rec Center Calendar 

Ageless Grace - Mondays – 2PM – 3PM 

Gym Open - Mondays, Wednesdays & Fridays – 8AM - 7PM & Saturdays - 8AM – Noon 

Dance Fitness - Tuesdays - 6PM & Saturdays - 11AM 



 

CITY OF TEXARKANA, AR 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

AGENDA TITLE: Presentation of the City of Texarkana, Arkansas Employee Service 

Awards. (ADMIN)  

AGENDA DATE: July 3, 2023 

ITEM TYPE: Ordinance☐  Resolution☐  Other☒: Presentation 

DEPARTMENT: City Clerk Department 

PREPARED BY: Heather Soyars, City Clerk 

REQUEST: Presentation of employee service awards. 

EMERGENCY CLAUSE: N/A 

SUMMARY: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Employee Service Awards: 

 

Kimberly Stone District Court - Probation 5 Years 

Adam Dalby Parks & Rec 5 Years 

John McCoy Parks & Rec 5 Years 

Jordan Qualls Parks & Rec 5 Years 

Roger Douglas PWD 5 Years 

Bennie C. Muldrew PWD – Streets 15 Years 

Kyle Caudle TAPD 10 Years 

Jeremy Hendrix TAPD 10 Years 

Michael W. Hurst TWU 5 Years 

Amy C. Uselton TWU 5 Years 

Corey L. Atkinson TWU 15 Years 

Barbara M. Baker TWU 20 Years 

Lionel L. Stuckey TWU 30 Years 

Mary Beck – Retirement PWD-Planning 22 Years 

 
 

EXPENSE REQUIRED: N/A 

AMOUNT BUDGETED: N/A 

APPROPRIATION 

REQUIRED: 

N/A 

RECOMMENDED 

ACTION: 

N/A 

EXHIBITS: None 

 



 

CITY OF TEXARKANA, AR 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

AGENDA TITLE: Approval of the minutes of the rescheduled regular meeting June 20, 

2023.  (CCD) City Clerk Heather Soyars 

AGENDA DATE: July 3, 2023 

ITEM TYPE: Ordinance☐  Resolution☐  Other☒: Minutes 

DEPARTMENT: City Clerk Department 

PREPARED BY: Heather Soyars, City Clerk 

REQUEST: Approval of meeting minutes. 

EMERGENCY CLAUSE: N/A 

SUMMARY: Approval of meeting minutes 

EXPENSE REQUIRED: N/A 

AMOUNT BUDGETED: N/A 

APPROPRIATION 

REQUIRED: 

N/A 

RECOMMENDED 

ACTION: 

The City Clerk recommends Board approval. 

EXHIBITS: Meeting minutes. 

 



 

 

 

Rescheduled Regular Meeting of the  

Board of Directors 
City of Texarkana, Arkansas 

216 Walnut Street 

Minutes - Tuesday, June 20, 2023 - 6:00 PM 

 

 

Mayor Allen Brown called the meeting to order at 6:00 PM. 

PRESENT: Mayor Allen Brown, Assistant Mayor Ward 1 Terry Roberts, Ward 2 Director Laney 

Harris, Ward 3 Director Steven Hollibush, Ward 4 Director Ulysses Brewer, Ward 5 Danny Jewell, 

and Ward 6 Director Jeff Hart.  

ALSO, PRESENT: Acting City Manager/Finance Director TyRhonda Henderson, City Attorney 

Joshua Potter, and City Clerk Heather Soyars.  

ABSENT: Deputy City Clerk Jenny Narens. 

Invocation given by Director Ulysses Brewer.  

Pledge of Allegiance led by Police Chief Michael Kramm. 

CITIZEN COMMUNICATION 

David Peavy, 105 Olive Street, voiced his concerns about flooding and the need for retaining 

ponds; trains and whistle noise and the need for quiet zones; reviewing the lien laws as they are 

applied by the City; and the need for a dog park downtown and he suggested the Pocket Park for 

this use. 

Director Harris asked the City Attorney about the Rules of Order and Procedure Manual regarding 

board meeting presentations.  The City Attorney stated that change in the Rules of Order was for 

time management and decorum for time management.  Discussion followed concerning changes 

to the Rules of Order voiced by Directors regarding presentations and the ability to respond to 

citizen comments during Citizen Communication. 

PRESENTATION(S) 

1. Presentation of the January 2023 thru March 2023 Budget Variance Report. (FIN) Finance 

Director TyRhonda Henderson 

2. Presentation of the Front Street Festival Plaza restrooms. (PWD) Public Works Director Tyler 

Richards  

 



 

CONSENT 

Director Harris asked to remove Item 5. Adopt a Resolution authorizing and directing the Acting 

City Manager to submit a transportation alternatives reimbursable grant application to the 

Arkansas Highway Transportation Department (AHTD) Arkansas Transportation Alternatives 

Program (TAP) for County Avenue Sidewalk Improvements. (PWD) Public Works Director Tyler 

Richards and Item 6. Adopt a Resolution authorizing and directing the Acting City Manager to 

submit a recreational trails reimbursable grant application to the Arkansas Highway Transportation 

Department (AHTD) Arkansas Recreational Trails Program (RTP) for a Walking Trail. (PWD) 

Public Works Director Tyler Richards  

Director Hart made the motion to adopt the Consent agenda, Seconded by Director Hollibush.  The 

motion carried and the following items were approved:   

3. Approval of the minutes of the regular meeting June 5, 2023, the special called meeting June 

7, 2023, and the special called meeting June 13, 2023.  (CCD) City Clerk Heather Soyars 

4. Resolution No. 2023-54 authorized the Acting City Manager to enter into an agreement with 

Regions Bank to accept a revolving line of credit of $300,000.00 associated with a Purchase 

Power Card. (FIN) Acting City Manager/Finance Director  

REGULAR 

5. Resolution No. 2023-55 authorized and directed the Acting City Manager to submit a 

transportation alternatives reimbursable grant application to the Arkansas Highway 

Transportation Department (AHTD) Arkansas Transportation Alternatives Program (TAP) 

for County Avenue Sidewalk Improvements. (PWD) Public Works Director Tyler Richards 

After a brief discussion, the motion to adopt the resolution made by Director Hollibush, Seconded 

by Director Hart. 

Voting Yea: Mayor Brown, Assistant Mayor Roberts, Director Harris, Director Hollibush, Director 

Brewer, Director Jewell, and Director Hart.  

The motion carried 7-0 and the Mayor declared the resolution adopted. 

 

6. Resolution No. 2023-56 authorized and directed the Acting City Manager to submit a 

recreational trails reimbursable grant application to the Arkansas Highway Transportation 

Department (AHTD) Arkansas Recreational Trails Program (RTP) for a Walking Trail. 

(PWD) Public Works Director Tyler Richards  

After a brief discussion, the motion to adopt the resolution made by Director Hart, Seconded by 

Director Brewer. 

Voting Yea: Mayor Brown, Assistant Mayor Roberts, Director Harris, Director Hollibush, Director 

Brewer, Director Jewell, and Director Hart.  

The motion carried 7-0 and the Mayor declared the resolution adopted. 

 

 



 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS' COMMENTARY 

Director Roberts asked if it was possible to reschedule the July 3rd board meeting due to the July 

4th holiday.  City Attorney Josh Potter said in his opinion, the meeting does not fall on the July 4th 

holiday and the meeting could not be rescheduled. 

Director Jewell said he was absent from the last meeting and he wanted the towing ordinance to 

be read the second and third time at subsequent meetings for the public to be aware of this 

ordinance.  He also was concerned with the cost of towing fees.  A discussion followed with other 

Directors voicing their opinions of the towing ordinance. 

Director Hollibush announced the Texarkana Regional Airport would present the Airport Master 

Plan to the community on Wednesday, July 12, 2023, 5:30 – 6:30 PM at the Texarkana Texas 

Convention Center. 

NEXT MEETING DATE:  Monday, July 3, 2023 

EXECUTIVE SESSION 

The Board of Directors entered Executive Session at 6:52 PM to discuss the open city manager 

position. 

The Mayor reconvened the meeting at 7:06 PM and no action was taken. 

ADJOURN 

Motion to adjourn made by Director Hart, Seconded by Director Hollibush.  

Voting Yea: Mayor Brown, Assistant Mayor Roberts, Director Harris, Director Hollibush, Director 

Brewer, Director Jewell and Director Hart.  

The motion carried 7-0 and the meeting adjourned at 7:07 PM.  

APPROVED this the 3rd day of July 2023. 

 

____________________________ 

Allen L. Brown, Mayor 

 

____________________________ 

Jenny Narens, Deputy City Clerk 

 



 

CITY OF TEXARKANA, AR 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

AGENDA TITLE: Adopt a Resolution authorizing the Acting City Manager to enter into a 

contract for the purchase of chemicals for water and wastewater 

treatment. (TWU) Executive Director Gary Smith 

AGENDA DATE: July 3, 2023 

ITEM TYPE: Ordinance☐  Resolution☒  Other☐:  

DEPARTMENT: Texarkana Water Utilities 

PREPARED BY: Gary Smith, P.E, Executive Director 

REQUEST: Resolution authorizing the Acting City Manager to enter into a contract 

for the purchase of chemicals for water and wastewater treatment. 

EMERGENCY CLAUSE: N/A 

SUMMARY: Resolution authorizing the Acting City Manager to enter into a contract 

for the purchase of chemicals for water and wastewater treatment, with 

budgeted funds, for fiscal year 2023-2024.  Bids were advertised, and 

thirty-eight chemical specification packages were requested and mailed 

to prospective bidders in May.  Bids were received and opened at 2:00 

PM, June 6, 2023, on the following chemicals required for water and 

wastewater treatment for FY 2023-2024: Sodium Chlorite, Sulphur 

Dioxide, HTH (100# containers), Caustic Soda (bulk), Liquid Chlorine, 

Aluminum Sulfate, Ortho-Polyphosphate, Anhydrous Ammonia, Liquid 

Polymer for the Water Treatment Plant, and Liquid Polymer for the 

Wastewater Treatment Plant. 

EXPENSE REQUIRED: Not to exceed amount budgeted in FY 2023-2024 budget. 

AMOUNT BUDGETED: To be approved in FY 2023-2024 budget. 

APPROPRIATION 

REQUIRED: 

None. 

RECOMMENDED 

ACTION: 

Recommendations are for the low bid price per unit, from the listed 

vendors as shown on the bid tabulation sheet (ATTH 01), in an aggregate 

amount not to exceed the amount budgeted in the Texarkana Water 

Utilities, Departments 410, 420, 490, 520, 530 and 540 Operating Fund 

Budgets for FY 2023-2024. 

EXHIBITS: Resolution and ATTH 01 Chemical Bid Tabulation Sheet. 

 



RESOLUTION NO. _________ 

WHEREAS, Texarkana Water Utilities advertised for bids for chemicals for water 

and wastewater treatment for use at the Wright Patman Water Treatment Plant, Millwood 

Water Treatment Plant, South Regional Wastewater Treatment Plant and North Texarkana 

Wastewater Treatment Plant and the low bid price per unit is shown on the attached bid 

tabulation sheet; and 

 WHEREAS, the utility staff recommends acceptance of these bids, provided the 

aggregate amount does not exceed the amounts approved in the FY2023-2024 budget; and  

 WHEREAS, the Acting City Manager and staff recommend approval;  

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Board of Directors of the City 

of Texarkana, Arkansas that the Acting City Manager is authorized to enter into contracts 

for the chemicals and with the suppliers for the corresponding low bids as specifically set 

forth on the attached tabulation, provided that the aggregate amounts do not exceed the 

amounts approved in the FY2023-2024 budget. 

 PASSED AND APPROVED this 3rd day of July, 2023.   

 

 ______________________________ 

        Allen L. Brown, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

 

 

_________________________________ 

Heather Soyars, City Clerk  

 

 

APPROVED: 

 

 

_________________________________ 

Joshua L. Potter, City Attorney 





 

CITY OF TEXARKANA, AR 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

AGENDA TITLE: Adopt a Resolution conditionally authorizing the City of Texarkana, 

Arkansas Public Facilities Board to proceed with the issuance of 

approximately $22,000,000 of Waterworks Facilities Revenue Bonds. 

(TWU) Executive Director Gary Smith 

   

AGENDA DATE: July 3, 2023 

ITEM TYPE: Ordinance☐  Resolution☒  Other☐:  

DEPARTMENT: Texarkana Water Utilities 

 

PREPARED BY: Gary Smith, P.E., Executive Director 

 

REQUEST: Adopt a Resolution conditionally authorizing the City of Texarkana, 

Arkansas Public Facilities Board to proceed with the issuance of 

approximately $22,000,000 of Waterworks Facilities Revenue Bonds. 

 

EMERGENCY CLAUSE: N/A 

SUMMARY: This resolution is needed to meet the requirements with Section 5 of 

Ordinance No. K-9.  This resolution is not a final approval by the City 

of the Facilities Board bonds required under Section 4 of Ordinance No. 

K-9 and does not obligate the City regarding the bond issue at this time. 

That will follow at a subsequent meeting of the City Board when the 

final terms of the bonds can be presented.   

EXPENSE REQUIRED: N/A 

AMOUNT BUDGETED: N/A 

APPROPRIATION 

REQUIRED: 

N/A 

RECOMMENDED 

ACTION: 

Utility staff recommends approval. 

EXHIBITS: Resolution, Letter from Raymond James, Ordinance No. K-9, and 

Ordinance K-150 

 



 

RESOLUTION NO. ________ 

A RESOLUTION CONDITIONALLY 

AUTHORIZING THE CITY OF TEXARKANA, 

ARKANSAS PUBLIC FACILITIES BOARD TO 

PROCEED WITH THE ISSUANCE OF 

APPROXIMATELY $22,000,000 OF 

WATERWORKS AND SEWER FACILITIES 

REVENUE BONDS; AND PRESCRIBING 

MATTERS RELATING THERETO 

 
WHEREAS, pursuant to the Constitution and laws of the State of Arkansas, including 

particularly, Amendment 65 and the Public Facilities Boards Act of 1975, as amended, 

codified as Arkansas Code Annotated Sections 14-137-101 et seq. (the "Act"), and ordinances 

of the City of Texarkana, Arkansas (the "City"), the City of Texarkana, Arkansas Public 

Facilities Board (the "Facilities Board”) is authorized in furtherance of the public purposes 

described in the Act to finance various capital improvements of a public nature, including 

waterworks and sewer facilities, through the issuance of its revenue bonds under the Act for 

such purposes; and 

WHEREAS, the Facilities Board has been requested by the Texarkana Water 

Utilities to issue approximately $22,000,000 in principal amount of its Waterworks and 

Sewer Facilities Revenue Bonds, (together with such series designation as may be 

appropriate at the time of issuance, the "Bonds"); and 

WHEREAS, it has been determined that the proceeds of the Bonds will be used to 

fund additional capital improvements to the City's water and sewer system which will benefit 

the City and its residents in furtherance of the public purposes of the Act and the ordinances 

of the City creating the Facilities Board; and in order to provide funds therefor, the 

Facilities Board desires to proceed with the issuance of the Bonds. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the City 

of Texarkana, Arkansas, as follows: 



 

Section 1. Findings. The Board of Directors of the City hereby finds and determines 

that the issuance of the Bonds will benefit the City and its residents in furtherance of the public 

purposes of the Act and the ordinances of the City creating the Facilities Board. 

Section 2. Conditional Authorization of Issuance of Bonds. Subject to subsequent 

review of the actual terms and provisions of the Bonds and related documents and subsequent 

approval of the issuance of the Bonds by resolution of the Board of Directors of the City pursuant 

to Section 1. of Ordinance No. K-150, adopted by the City on June 17, 1985, ("Ordinance No. 

K-150”); the City hereby-authorizes the Facilities Board to proceed with the issuance of the 

Bonds in the principal amount of approximately $22,000,000. 

Section 3. Approval of Underwriter. Pursuant to. Section 5(a) of Ordinance No. K-

9, adopted by the City on March 5, 1982, ("Ordinance No. K-9"), the City hereby approves the 

selection by the Facilities Board of Raymond James & Associates, Inc., to act as underwriter in 

connection with the issuance of the Bonds, the discount, fees, commissions and expenses of such 

underwriter to be paid from the proceeds of the sale of the Bonds as costs of issuance.  

Section 4. Approval of Bond Counsel. Pursuant to Section 5(b) of Ordinance No. 

K-9, the City hereby approves the selection by the Facilities Board of Rose Law Firm, a 

Professional Association to act as bond counsel in connection with the issuance of the Bonds, 

the fees and expenses of such counsel to be paid from the proceeds of the sale of the Bonds as 

costs of issuance. 

Section 5.  Conflicts. All resolutions and parts of resolutions in conflict herewith 

are hereby repealed to the extent of such conflict. 

PASSED AND APPROVED this 3rd day of July 2023. 
 

______________________________ 
Allen L. Brown, Mayor 

ATTEST: 
 

________________________________ 

Heather Soyars, City Clerk 
 

APPROVED: 
 
___________________________________ 
Joshua Potter, City Attorney 



ATTH 01









































 

CITY OF TEXARKANA, AR 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

AGENDA TITLE: Adopt a Resolution amending the Rules of Order and Procedure Manual 

for the Board of Directors of the City of Texarkana, Arkansas. (BOD) 

AGENDA DATE: July 3, 2023 

ITEM TYPE: Ordinance☐  Resolution☒  Other☐:  

DEPARTMENT: Board of Directors 

PREPARED BY: Heather Soyars, City Clerk 

REQUEST: Amend Rules of Order to allow members of the Board of Directors to 

add presentations to the agenda and to allow open communication 

between the Board members and citizens during Citizen’s 

Communication. 

EMERGENCY CLAUSE: N/A 

SUMMARY: Several members of the Board have expressed concerns regarding the 

Citizen Participation/Citizen Communication Time section of the Rules 

of Order and Procedure. 

Citizen Participation / Citizen 

Communication Time 

The Board of Directors allows a time on the agenda for citizens, 

organizations or community groups to address or make presentations to 

the Board.  Except for presentations by a member of the Board of 

Directors, City staff or City-appointed boards or commissions that may 

be placed elsewhere on the agenda, all comments by citizens or 

presentations by organizations or community groups concerning matters 

that are not otherwise being considered by the Board of Directors as an 

action item (i.e., for a vote) should be made during this period of the 

agenda.  The Mayor chairs the meeting and will recognize members of 

the audience who wish to be heard.  Citizens, organizations or 

community groups recognized by the Mayor are requested to approach 

the lectern, provide their name and address for the record and make their 

comment or presentation.  Each citizen comment or, in the case of a 

presentation by an organization or community group, each presentation, 

shall be limited to five (5) minutes; provided, however, a speaker’s (or, 

as applicable, organization’s or group’s) time may be extended upon 

proper motion (followed by a second and affirmative vote of two-thirds 

of the entire elected Board) to suspend the rules and extend the speaker’s 



time for specified period of time.  Speakers or presentations may not 

yield time to one another. 

 

Action by the Board is limited to those matters properly placed on the 

agenda or otherwise approved by the Board for consideration at a 

meeting in accordance with these rules, the Code of Ordinances of the 

City of Texarkana, Arkansas, and applicable law. 

 

This is not the only opportunity to address or discuss concern with the 

Board of Directors.  In order to effectively manage meeting time and 

insure those wishing to speak in accordance with these rules have a 

reasonable opportunity to do so, debate or comment from the Directors 

on issues raised by a member of the public during Citizen 

Communication Time shall not be undertaken or made unless and until 

a proper vote by the Board to add an issue to the agenda for 

consideration or discussion.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, the 

Directors may, by addressing the presiding officer or City Manager, 

refer an issue or concern to staff for follow-up. 

 

EXPENSE REQUIRED: N/A 

AMOUNT BUDGETED: N/A 

APPROPRIATION 

REQUIRED: 

N/A 

RECOMMENDED 

ACTION: 

 

EXHIBITS: Resolution, and Rules of Order and Procedural Manual 

 



RESOLUTION NO. _______ 

WHEREAS, to ensure effective communication and discussion during meetings of 

the Board of Directors of the City of Texarkana, Arkansas, it is necessary to amend the 

existing Rules of Order and Procedure Manual;  

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Board of Directors of the City 

of Texarkana, Arkansas, that the Rules of Order and Procedure Manual for the Board of 

Directors of the City of Texarkana, Arkansas, is amended as follows and the Clerk is 

directed to include these amendments in and republish the Rules in an updated and 

amended form.   

 

1. Rules of Order and Procedure Manual: “Citizen Participation / Citizen 

Communication Time” is deleted in its entirety and the following is substituted for the 

same: 

The Board of Directors allows a time on the agenda for citizens, organizations, or 

community groups to address or make presentations to the Board.  Except for 

presentations by a member of the Board of Directors, City staff or City-appointed 

boards or commissions that may be placed elsewhere on the agenda, all comments 

by citizens or presentations by organizations or community groups concerning 

matters that are not otherwise being considered by the Board of Directors as an 

action item (i.e., for a vote) should be made during this period of the agenda.  The 

Mayor chairs the meeting and will recognize members of the audience who wish to 

be heard.  Citizens, organizations or community groups recognized by the Mayor 

are requested to approach the lectern, provide their name and address for the record 

and make their comment or presentation.  Each citizen comment or, in the case of 

a presentation by an organization or community group, each presentation, shall be 

limited to five (5) minutes; provided, however, a speaker’s (or, as applicable, 

organization’s or group’s) time may be extended upon proper motion (followed by 

a second and affirmative vote of two-thirds of the entire elected Board) to suspend 

the rules and extend the speaker’s time for specified period of time.  Speakers or 

presentations may not yield time to one another. 

Action by the Board is limited to those matters properly placed on the agenda or 

otherwise approved by the Board for consideration at a meeting in accordance with 

these rules, the City of Texarkana, Arkansas, Code of Ordinances, and applicable 

law. 

 



 PASSED AND APPROVED this 3rd day of July, 2023.   

      

 _________________________________ 

              Allen L. Brown, Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

_________________________________ 

Heather Soyars, City Clerk  

 

 

APPROVED: 

 

 

_________________________________ 

Joshua L. Potter, City Attorney 

 



Updated 03052018 
 

RULES OF ORDER 
AND 

PROCEDURE MANUAL 
 

 
 

for the Board of Directors 
of the City of 

Texarkana, Arkansas 



Updated 03052018 
 

RULES OF ORDER AND PROCEDURE 
FOR THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

OF THE 
CITY OF TEXARKANA, ARKANSAS 

 
A. Title 

The following rules and procedures shall be known as the "Rules of Order and Procedure 
for the Texarkana, Arkansas Board of Directors" and shall govern the conduct of all 
meetings of said Board unless suspended by proper vote of the members of that Board; 
and it is specifically understood that these rules and procedures shall be subject to and 
subordinate to those procedural requirements as established by the laws and the 
Constitution of the State of Arkansas. 
 

B. Board Meeting 
 

Public Notification 

The City will, if necessary, go further than legally required in order to inform citizens of 
the items to be considered by the Board.  The means used will include advertisements in 
a local newspaper, special notice to citizens who have shown a direct interest in matters 
to be considered and agenda copies available at Board meetings. 

Formulation of Agenda 

1) Preparation of the agenda for each Regular or Special Meeting of the Board of 
Directors shall be in accordance with the procedures set forth in the Code of 
Ordinances of the City of Texarkana, Arkansas. 

2) Items added to the agenda upon the request of a member of the Board and endorsed 
by one or more members of the Board in accordance with the Code of Ordinances of 
the City of Texarkana, Arkansas, shall be identified on the agenda as so requested or 
endorsed. 

3) The agenda shall be completed by the city clerk under the supervision of the city 
manager and distributed to the Board members and news media prior to the close of 
business on Thursday preceding the regular Board meeting. 

4) The agenda for special meetings shall be available to the Board of Directors and news 
media as far ahead of the special meeting as practical. 

5) Code of Ordinances of the City of Texarkana, Arkansas Sec. 2-17. – Bringing 
business before the board----Filing. 



Updated 03052018 
 

a) All matters of business coming before any regular meeting of the board of 
directors for action shall be filed with the office of the city manager by 5:00 p.m. 
on the second Wednesday prior to the regular board meeting. Failure to file notice 
of intention to seek action on an item of business at least seven (7) business days 
prior to a regular board meeting shall prevent said business from being included 
as an agenda item at said meeting. 

b) Copies of filings made in accordance with this section shall be provided to the 
city manager, city attorney and to each city department head. Department heads 
and/or the city attorney may thereafter provide comments concerning each 
proposed item to the city manager. The city manager, by 5:00 p.m. on the 
Wednesday following the timely filing of an item, and after consideration of any 
comments received in accordance with this provision, shall make a 
recommendation of "staff recommends approval" or "staff does not recommend 
approval" as to each item filed. Unless board consideration is necessitated by 
other applicable law (for example, proper administrative appeal or consideration 
of prior action of the planning commission) items not recommended for approval 
by staff shall not be included on the agenda for the upcoming board meeting and, 
for any such item originally filed by a member of the board of directors, the city 
manager shall promptly (within at least thirty (30) days) schedule a workshop of 
the board of directors for the purpose of discussing the item and, in the event that 
the item thereafter receives the affirmative endorsement of at least two members 
of the board of directors, the same will be added to the agenda for the next 
regularly scheduled meeting occurring no sooner than seven (7) business days 
following the workshop. 

c) Matters which have been previously voted on and decided by the board of 
directors at a regular or special meeting of the board cannot be reconsidered at the 
meeting during which the same was voted and decided, nor resubmitted to the 
board of directors until the expiration of one hundred eighty (180) days after such 
vote and decision unless reconsideration is approved by a two-thirds ( 2/3 ) vote 
of the board of directors. 

(Ord. No. B-961, § 1, 1-8-57; Ord. No. H-170, § 1, 9-7-71; Ord. No. K-712, 4-5-99; Code 
1961, § 2-2; Ord. No. L-351, § 1, 6-15-09; Ord. No. 21-2017, § 1, 7-17-17) 

Quorum 

A majority of the Board shall be necessary to constitute a quorum to do business.  The 
concurring vote of a majority of those attending a meeting, provided a quorum is present, 
shall represent the acts of the Board except where otherwise provided by law or by these 
rules. 



Updated 03052018 
 

Location 

The location of the Regular Board of Directors’ Meetings shall be the Texarkana, 
Arkansas City Hall Board Room unless another place has been previously set by the 
Directors. 
 
Agenda Procedures 

Sections 2-16 through 2-20 of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Texarkana, 
Arkansas, apply to placing an item on a regularly scheduled meeting agenda.  However, 
members of the public will be offered an opportunity to speak on all questions presented 
to the Board on that particular meeting's agenda.  Any member of the public desiring to 
speak in regard to a particular agenda item will be recognized by the Mayor and given an 
opportunity to speak prior to action by the Board of Directors.  Speakers shall be limited 
to five (5) minutes; provided, however, a speaker’s time may be extended upon proper 
motion (followed by second and affirmative vote of two-thirds of the entire elected 
Board) to suspend the rules and extend the speaker’s time for a specified period of time.  
Speakers may not yield time to one another. 
 
Regular Meetings 

The Board shall meet in regular session on the first and third Monday of each month at 
6:00 p.m.  When a holiday occurs on any such Monday the regular meeting shall be held 
on the following Tuesday at the same hour unless otherwise provided for by motion.  The 
regular meeting time may be rescheduled by the Board in special circumstances.  Any 
change must be made far enough in advance to allow normal public notification. 
 
Special Meetings 

Special meetings may be called at any time by the Mayor or by Directors representing a 
majority of the elected membership of the Board, which is four (4) Directors.  
Notification of a special meeting, including specific items to be considered, shall be at 
least two hours prior to the meeting. Such notification shall be by personal service to each 
member or by telephone, specifying time and place of meeting. 
 
No business shall be transacted at any special meeting of the Board unless the same has 
been stated in the notice of such meeting.  However, any additional business, which may 
lawfully come before a regular meeting, may be transacted at a special meeting if all the 
members of the Board present consent thereto and all the absent members file their 
written consent. 
 
Executive Session 

An executive session may be convened on the request of any member of the Board or the 
City Manager. 
 



Updated 03052018 
 

Executive sessions will be permitted only for the purpose of considering the employment, 
appointment, promotion, demotion, disciplining, or resignation of any public officer or 
employee. 
 
All executive sessions shall be conducted strictly within the letter and the spirit of the 
Arkansas Freedom of Information Act. 
 
Consent Agenda 

Items placed in this section are matter of routine business, which are expected to involve 
little or no discussion by the Board or the public.  The Consent Agenda is usually voted 
on in mass. However, if any Director so desires, individual items may be discussed 
and/or voted on as a separate matter of business. 
 
General Rules of Discussion 

All debate and comment on a specific agenda item should be limited to that item.  Any 
speaker shall withhold comment until being recognized by the presiding officer.  Any 
person addressing the Board in accordance with these rules shall make such comments 
from the lectern or such other place as is designated by the presiding officer.  Comments 
should be addressed to the presiding officer or to the Board as a whole.  All persons 
speaking at a meeting, including Directors, shall refrain at all times from rude or 
derogatory remarks, reflections as to integrity, abusive comments, statements as to 
motives and personalities.  Consent of the presiding officer is required before any person 
may approach the Board dais beyond the lectern.  Should a Director wish that the 
presiding officer recognize a member of the public or staff to be heard or respond to 
inquiry, the Director shall address such request to the presiding officer and not directly to 
the desired speaker. 
 
Citizen Participation / Citizen Communication Time 

The Board of Directors allows a time on the agenda for citizens, organizations or 
community groups to address or make presentations to the Board.  Except for 
presentations by City staff or City-appointed boards or commissions that may be placed 
elsewhere on the agenda, all comments by citizens or presentations by organizations or 
community groups concerning matters that are not otherwise being considered by the 
Board of Directors as an action item (i.e., for a vote) should be made during this period of 
the agenda.  The Mayor chairs the meeting and will recognize members of the audience 
who wish to be heard.  Citizens, organizations or community groups recognized by the 
Mayor are requested to approach the lectern, provide their name and address for the 
record and make their comment or presentation.  Each citizen comment or, in the case of 
a presentation by an organization or community group, each presentation, shall be limited 
to five (5) minutes; provided, however, a speaker’s (or, as applicable, organization’s or 
group’s) time may be extended upon proper motion (followed by a second an affirmative 
vote of two-thirds of the entire elected Board) to suspend the rules and extend the 



Updated 03052018 
 

speaker’s time for specified period of time.  Speakers or presentations may not yield time 
to one another. 
 
Action by the Board is limited to those matters properly placed on the agenda or 
otherwise approved by the Board for consideration at a meeting in accordance with these 
rules, the Code of Ordinances of the City of Texarkana, Arkansas, and applicable law. 
This is not the only opportunity to address or discuss concern with the Board of 
Directors.  In order to effectively manage meeting time and insure those wishing to speak 
in accordance with these rules have a reasonable opportunity to do so, debate or comment 
from the Directors on issues raised by a member of the public during Citizen 
Communication Time shall not be undertaken or made unless and until a proper vote by 
the Board to add an issue to the agenda for consideration or discussion.  Notwithstanding 
the foregoing, the Directors may, by addressing the presiding officer or City Manager, 
refer an issue or concern to staff for follow-up. 
 
Policy Statement 

Items not on the regularly scheduled agenda are usually scheduled for a future agenda to 
give the Board of Directors an opportunity to review the matter. 
 
Smoking Prohibited 

There will be no smoking allowed in the Board Room during Board meetings. 
 

C. Duties And Privileges Of Board Members At Board Meetings 
 
Conduct 

During Board meetings Board members shall preserve order and decorum and shall 
neither by conversation or otherwise delay or interrupt the proceedings.  Neither shall 
they refuse to obey the orders of the Presiding Officer or the rules of the Board. 
 
Every member of the Board desiring to speak shall address the chair and, upon 
recognition by the Presiding Officer, shall confine herself or himself to the question 
under debate and shall avoid all personalities and indecorous language.  A Board member 
once recognized shall not be interrupted while speaking unless called to order by the 
Presiding Officer, unless a point of order is raised by another member or unless the 
member chooses to yield to questions from another member. 
 
***BOARD OF DIRECTORS CODE OF CONDUCT*** – Resolution No. 2018-9 – 
Adopted March 5, 2018, separate document. 

 



Updated 03052018 
 

Personal Interest 

No member of the Board with a direct or indirect financial interest in any item before the 
Board shall participate in the voting on such matter. 
 
Voting 

Every member present when a question is put to a vote shall vote either "yes or no", 
except that a member may abstain from voting if he or she has not participated in the 
preceding discussion of the question and if that member briefly states the reason for the 
abstention.  The Directors will vote at Board meetings in the order of their position 
number, but with a progressively different position voting first at each month. 
 
Roll Call 

Upon every vote the affirmative and negative votes shall be called and shall be recorded 
on every motion, resolution, and ordinance. 
 

D. The Presiding Officer 
 

Mayor and Assistant Mayor 

The Mayor shall preside at all meetings of the Board; in the absence of the Mayor, the 
duties shall be performed by the Assistant Mayor. 
 
Privileges of the Presiding Officer 

The Presiding Officer may move, second, and debate from the chair and shall not be 
deprived of the rights and privileges of a member of the Board of Directors by reason of 
her or his acting as the Presiding Officer. 
 

E. Procedures and Parliamentary Rules 
 

Order of Business 

The order of the Board’s agenda shall be set by the City Manager.  The Mayor, with the 
consent of the Board, may rearrange the order of the agenda.  In addition, at the Presiding 
officer’s discretion or by a majority vote of the Board, certain agenda items may be 
classified as a part of a “Consent Agenda” and may be approved and adopted as a whole 
by a single voting action of the Board of Directors. 
 



Updated 03052018 
 

Motion to be stated by the Chair/Withdrawal 

When a motion is made and seconded, it shall be stated by the Presiding Officer before 
debate.  After being stated by the Mayor, a motion may not be withdrawn by the mover 
without the consent of the member seconding it and approval of the Board. 
 
Readings 

All ordinances shall be read aloud at three different meetings unless the Board of 
Directors votes to suspend this rule in accordance with A.C.A. § 14-55-202.  The reading 
of an ordinance's title shall constitute a complete reading of the ordinance unless objected 
to by any member of the Board of Directors in which case the ordinance shall be read in 
its entirety. 
 
Addendum to Agenda 

Any item to be added to the agenda its submission to the Board of Directors shall require 
a waiver executed by a majority of the members of the Board of Directors before it may 
be considered as a part of the agenda. 

 
 



Updated 03052018 
 

Principle Rules Governing Motions (Chart) 
      
Order of Precedence Can interrupt speaker? Requires a second? Debatable? Amendable? Vote required? 
      
I. Privileged Motions      
1. Adjourn No Yes No No Majority 
2. Recess No Yes No Yes Majority 
3. Question of Privilege Yes No No No No vote 
      
II. Subsidiary Motions      
4. Postpone Temporarily No Yes No No Majority 
5. Vote Immediately No Yes No No Majority 
6. Limit Debate No Yes No Yes Majority 
7. Postpone Definitely No Yes Yes Yes Majority 
8. Refer to Committee No Yes Yes Yes Majority 
9. Amend No Yes Yes Yes Majority 
10. Postpone indefinitely No Yes Yes No Majority 
      
Main Motions      
11. General Main Motion No Yes Yes No Majority 
      
Incidental Motion      
12. Appeal Yes Yes Yes No Tie or Majority 
13. Point of Order Yes No No No No vote 
14. Withdraw a Motion No No No No No vote 
15. Suspend Rules No Yes No No Two-thirds 
16. Division of a Question No No No No No vote 
17. Division of Assembly Yes No No No No vote 



Updated 03052018 
 

 



PROPOSED - July 3,2023 

 

 

 

RULES OF ORDER 

AND 

PROCEDURE MANUAL 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

for the Board of Directors 

of the City of 

Texarkana, Arkansas 



PROPOSED - July 3,2023 

 

 

RULES OF ORDER AND PROCEDURE 

FOR THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

OF THE 

CITY OF TEXARKANA, ARKANSAS 

A. Title 
The following rules and procedures shall be known as the "Rules of Order and Procedure 

for the Texarkana, Arkansas Board of Directors" and shall govern the conduct of all 

meetings of said Board unless suspended by proper vote of the members of that Board; 

and it is specifically understood that these rules and procedures shall be subject to and 

subordinate to those procedural requirements as established by the laws and the 

Constitution of the State of Arkansas. 

 

B. Board Meeting 

Public Notification 

The City will, if necessary, go further than legally required in order to inform citizens of 

the items to be considered by the Board. The means used will include advertisements in  

a local newspaper, special notice to citizens who have shown a direct interest in matters 

to be considered and agenda copies available at Board meetings. 
 

Formulation of Agenda 

1) Preparation of the agenda for each Regular or Special Meeting of the Board of 

Directors shall be in accordance with the procedures set forth in the Code of 

Ordinances of the City of Texarkana, Arkansas. 
 

2) Items added to the agenda upon the request of a member of the Board and endorsed 

by one or more members of the Board in accordance with the Code of Ordinances of 

the City of Texarkana, Arkansas, shall be identified on the agenda as so requested or 

endorsed. 
 

3) The agenda shall be completed by the city clerk under the supervision of the city 

manager and distributed to the Board members and news media prior to the close of 

business on Thursday preceding the regular Board meeting. 
 

4) The agenda for special meetings shall be available to the Board of Directors and news 

media as far ahead of the special meeting as practical. 
 

5) Code of Ordinances of the City of Texarkana, Arkansas Sec. 2-17. – Bringing 

business before the board Filing. 



PROPOSED - July 3,2023 

 

 

a) All matters of business coming before any regular meeting of the board of 

directors for action shall be filed with the office of the city manager by 5:00 p.m. 

on the second Wednesday prior to the regular board meeting. Failure to file notice 

of intention to seek action on an item of business at least seven (7) business days 

prior to a regular board meeting shall prevent said business from being included 

as an agenda item at said meeting. 
 

b) Copies of filings made in accordance with this section shall be provided to the 

city manager, city attorney and to each city department head. Department heads 

and/or the city attorney may thereafter provide comments concerning each 

proposed item to the city manager. The city manager, by 5:00 p.m. on the 

Wednesday following the timely filing of an item, and after consideration of any 

comments received in accordance with this provision, shall make a 

recommendation of "staff recommends approval" or "staff does not recommend 

approval" as to each item filed. Unless board consideration is necessitated by 

other applicable law (for example, proper administrative appeal or consideration 

of prior action of the planning commission) items not recommended for approval 

by staff shall not be included on the agenda for the upcoming board meeting and, 

for any such item originally filed by a member of the board of directors, the city 

manager shall promptly (within at least thirty (30) days) schedule a workshop of 

the board of directors for the purpose of discussing the item and, in the event that 

the item thereafter receives the affirmative endorsement of at least two members 

of the board of directors, the same will be added to the agenda for the next 

regularly scheduled meeting occurring no sooner than seven (7) business days 

following the workshop. 
 

c) Matters which have been previously voted on and decided by the board of 

directors at a regular or special meeting of the board cannot be reconsidered at the 

meeting during which the same was voted and decided, nor resubmitted to the 

board of directors until the expiration of one hundred eighty (180) days after such 

vote and decision unless reconsideration is approved by a two-thirds ( 2/3 ) vote 

of the board of directors. 
 

(Ord. No. B-961, § 1, 1-8-57; Ord. No. H-170, § 1, 9-7-71; Ord. No. K-712, 4-5-99; Code 

1961, § 2-2; Ord. No. L-351, § 1, 6-15-09; Ord. No. 21-2017, § 1, 7-17-17) 

 

Quorum 

A majority of the Board shall be necessary to constitute a quorum to do business. The 

concurring vote of a majority of those attending a meeting, provided a quorum is present, 

shall represent the acts of the Board except where otherwise provided by law or by these 

rules. 



PROPOSED - July 3,2023 

 

 

Location 

The location of the Regular Board of Directors’ Meetings shall be the Texarkana, 

Arkansas City Hall Board Room unless another place has been previously set by the 

Directors. 

 

Agenda Procedures 

Sections 2-16 through 2-20 of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Texarkana, 

Arkansas, apply to placing an item on a regularly scheduled meeting agenda. However, 

members of the public will be offered an opportunity to speak on all questions presented 

to the Board on that particular meeting's agenda. Any member of the public desiring to 

speak in regard to a particular agenda item will be recognized by the Mayor and given an 

opportunity to speak prior to action by the Board of Directors. Speakers shall be limited 

to five (5) minutes; provided, however, a speaker’s time may be extended upon proper 

motion (followed by second and affirmative vote of two-thirds of the entire elected 

Board) to suspend the rules and extend the speaker’s time for a specified period of time. 

Speakers may not yield time to one another. 

 

Regular Meetings 

The Board shall meet in regular session on the first and third Monday of each month at 

6:00 p.m. When a holiday occurs on any such Monday the regular meeting shall be held 

on the following Tuesday at the same hour unless otherwise provided for by motion. The 

regular meeting time may be rescheduled by the Board in special circumstances. Any 

change must be made far enough in advance to allow normal public notification. 

 

Special Meetings 

Special meetings may be called at any time by the Mayor or by Directors representing a 

majority of the elected membership of the Board, which is four (4) Directors.  

Notification of a special meeting, including specific items to be considered, shall be at 

least two hours prior to the meeting. Such notification shall be by personal service to each 

member or by telephone, specifying time and place of meeting. 

 

No business shall be transacted at any special meeting of the Board unless the same has 

been stated in the notice of such meeting. However, any additional business, which may 

lawfully come before a regular meeting, may be transacted at a special meeting if all the 

members of the Board present consent thereto and all the absent members file their 

written consent. 

 

Executive Session 

An executive session may be convened on the request of any member of the Board or the 

City Manager. 



PROPOSED - July 3,2023 

 

 

Executive sessions will be permitted only for the purpose of considering the employment, 

appointment, promotion, demotion, disciplining, or resignation of any public officer or 

employee. 

 

All executive sessions shall be conducted strictly within the letter and the spirit of the 

Arkansas Freedom of Information Act. 

 

Consent Agenda 

Items placed in this section are matter of routine business, which are expected to involve 

little or no discussion by the Board or the public. The Consent Agenda is usually voted 

on in mass. However, if any Director so desires, individual items may be discussed 

and/or voted on as a separate matter of business. 

 

General Rules of Discussion 

All debate and comment on a specific agenda item should be limited to that item. Any 

speaker shall withhold comment until being recognized by the presiding officer. Any 

person addressing the Board in accordance with these rules shall make such comments 

from the lectern or such other place as is designated by the presiding officer. Comments 

should be addressed to the presiding officer or to the Board as a whole. All persons 

speaking at a meeting, including Directors, shall refrain at all times from rude or 

derogatory remarks, reflections as to integrity, abusive comments, statements as to 

motives and personalities. Consent of the presiding officer is required before any person 

may approach the Board dais beyond the lectern. Should a Director wish that the 

presiding officer recognize a member of the public or staff to be heard or respond to 

inquiry, the Director shall address such request to the presiding officer and not directly to 

the desired speaker. 

 

Citizen Participation / Citizen Communication Time 

The Board of Directors allows a time on the agenda for citizens, organizations or 

community groups to address or make presentations to the Board. Except for 

presentations by a member of the Board of Directors, City staff or City-appointed boards 

or commissions that may be placed elsewhere on the agenda, all comments by citizens or 

presentations by organizations or community groups concerning matters that are not 

otherwise being considered by the Board of Directors as an action item (i.e., for a vote) 

should be made during this period of the agenda. The Mayor chairs the meeting and will 

recognize members of the audience who wish to be heard. Citizens, organizations or 

community groups recognized by the Mayor are requested to approach the lectern, 

provide their name and address for the record and make their comment or presentation. 

Each citizen comment or, in the case of  a presentation by an organization or community 

group, each presentation, shall be limited to five (5) minutes; provided, however, a 

speaker’s (or, as applicable, organization’s or group’s) time may be extended upon proper 

motion (followed by a second and affirmative vote of two-thirds of the entire elected 

Board) to suspend the rules and extend the 



PROPOSED - July 3,2023 

 

 

speaker’s time for specified period of time. Speakers or presentations may not yield time 

to one another. 

 

Action by the Board is limited to those matters properly placed on the agenda or 

otherwise approved by the Board for consideration at a meeting in accordance with these 

rules, the Code of Ordinances of the City of Texarkana, Arkansas, and applicable law. 

 

Policy Statement 

Items not on the regularly scheduled agenda are usually scheduled for a future agenda to 

give the Board of Directors an opportunity to review the matter. 

 

Smoking Prohibited 

There will be no smoking allowed in the Board Room during Board meetings. 

 

C. Duties And Privileges Of Board Members At Board Meetings 

 
Conduct 

During Board meetings Board members shall preserve order and decorum and shall 

neither by conversation or otherwise delay or interrupt the proceedings. Neither shall  

they refuse to obey the orders of the Presiding Officer or the rules of the Board. 

 

Every member of the Board desiring to speak shall address the chair and, upon 

recognition by the Presiding Officer, shall confine herself or himself to the question 

under debate and shall avoid all personalities and indecorous language. A Board member 

once recognized shall not be interrupted while speaking unless called to order by the 

Presiding Officer, unless a point of order is raised by another member or unless the 

member chooses to yield to questions from another member. 

 

***BOARD OF DIRECTORS CODE OF CONDUCT*** – Resolution No. 2018-9 – 

Adopted March 5, 2018, separate document. 



PROPOSED - July 3,2023 

 

 

Personal Interest 

No member of the Board with a direct or indirect financial interest in any item before the 

Board shall participate in the voting on such matter. 

 

Voting 

Every member present when a question is put to a vote shall vote either "yes or no", 

except that a member may abstain from voting if he or she has not participated in the 

preceding discussion of the question and if that member briefly states the reason for the 

abstention. The Directors will vote at Board meetings in the order of their position 

number, but with a progressively different position voting first at each month. 

 

Roll Call 

Upon every vote the affirmative and negative votes shall be called and shall be recorded 

on every motion, resolution, and ordinance. 

 

D. The Presiding Officer 

Mayor and Assistant Mayor 

The Mayor shall preside at all meetings of the Board; in the absence of the Mayor, the 

duties shall be performed by the Assistant Mayor. 

 

Privileges of the Presiding Officer 

The Presiding Officer may move, second, and debate from the chair and shall not be 

deprived of the rights and privileges of a member of the Board of Directors by reason of 

her or his acting as the Presiding Officer. 

 

E. Procedures and Parliamentary Rules 

Order of Business 

The order of the Board’s agenda shall be set by the City Manager. The Mayor, with the 

consent of the Board, may rearrange the order of the agenda. In addition, at the Presiding 

officer’s discretion or by a majority vote of the Board, certain agenda items may be 

classified as a part of a “Consent Agenda” and may be approved and adopted as a whole 

by a single voting action of the Board of Directors. 



PROPOSED - July 3,2023 

 

 

Motion to be stated by the Chair/Withdrawal 

When a motion is made and seconded, it shall be stated by the Presiding Officer before 

debate. After being stated by the Mayor, a motion may not be withdrawn by the mover 

without the consent of the member seconding it and approval of the Board. 

 

Readings 

All ordinances shall be read aloud at three different meetings unless the Board of 

Directors votes to suspend this rule in accordance with A.C.A. § 14-55-202. The reading 

of an ordinance's title shall constitute a complete reading of the ordinance unless objected 

to by any member of the Board of Directors in which case the ordinance shall be read in 

its entirety. 

 

Addendum to Agenda 

Any item to be added to the agenda its submission to the Board of Directors shall require 

a waiver executed by a majority of the members of the Board of Directors before it may 

be considered as a part of the agenda. 



Updated 03052018 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Principle Rules Governing Motions (Chart) 

 

Order of Precedence 

 

Can interrupt speaker? 

 

Requires a second? 

 

Debatable? 

 

Amendable? 

 

Vote required? 

I. Privileged Motions 
     

1. Adjourn No Yes No No Majority 

2. Recess No Yes No Yes Majority 

3. Question of Privilege Yes No No No No vote 

II. Subsidiary Motions 
     

4. Postpone Temporarily No Yes No No Majority 

5. Vote Immediately No Yes No No Majority 

6. Limit Debate No Yes No Yes Majority 

7. Postpone Definitely No Yes Yes Yes Majority 

8. Refer to Committee No Yes Yes Yes Majority 

9. Amend No Yes Yes Yes Majority 

10. Postpone indefinitely No Yes Yes No Majority 

Main Motions 
     

11. General Main Motion No Yes Yes No Majority 

Incidental Motion 
     

12. Appeal Yes Yes Yes No Tie or Majority 

13. Point of Order Yes No No No No vote 

14. Withdraw a Motion No No No No No vote 

15. Suspend Rules No Yes No No Two-thirds 

16. Division of a Question No No No No No vote 
17. Division of Assembly Yes No No No No vote 



Updated 03052018 

 

 

 



 

CITY OF TEXARKANA, AR 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

AGENDA TITLE: Adopt an Ordinance authorizing the Acting City Manager to enter into 

an agreement for the purchase of thirty-seven (37) Watchguard Body 

Cameras and related software, hardware, licenses, and warranties. 

(TAPD) Captain James Atchley  

 

The applicant requests an emergency clause. An emergency clause 

requires a separate and distinct vote of the board and is valid only if 

there is a two-thirds vote of approval by the board. (Hdbk. Const. 

Amend 7) 

 
AGENDA DATE: July 3, 2023 

ITEM TYPE: Ordinance☒  Resolution☐  Other☐:  

DEPARTMENT: Texarkana Arkansas Police Department 

PREPARED BY: Capt. James Atchley 

REQUEST: Purchase of Thirty-seven (37) Watchguard Body Cameras and related 

software, hardware, licenses, and warranties. Watchguard will also 

provide on-site deployment and training.  

 

 

EMERGENCY CLAUSE: Yes 

SUMMARY:  

EXPENSE REQUIRED: $114,523.19 

AMOUNT BUDGETED: $114,523.19 

APPROPRIATION 

REQUIRED: 

$0.00 

RECOMMENDED 

ACTION: 

Staff recommends approval by the Board of Directors. 

EXHIBITS: Ordinance, purchase request, and quote 

 



 

DRAFT
 

QUOTE-2168504
 

 

  

TEXARKANA POLICE DEPT, CITY OF 
(38) V700 w EL5 

05/17/2023

 

The design, technical, pricing, and other information (“Information”) furnished with this submission is confidential proprietary information of Motorola Solutions, Inc. or the Motorola Solutions entity providing this quote
(“Motorola”) and is submitted with the restriction that it is to be used for evaluation purposes only. To the fullest extent allowed by applicable law, the Information is not to be disclosed publicly or in any manner to
anyone other than those required to evaluate the Information without the express written permission of Motorola.
MOTOROLA, MOTO, MOTOROLA SOLUTIONS, and the Stylized M Logo are trademarks or registered trademarks of Motorola Trademark Holdings, LLC and are used under license. All other trademarks are the
property of their respective owners. © 2020 Motorola Solutions, Inc. All rights reserved.

 



 

Billing Address:
TEXARKANA POLICE DEPT,
CITY OF 
P O BOX 1885 
TEXARKANA, AR 71854 
US 
 
 

 

Quote Date:05/17/2023
Expiration Date:08/15/2023
Quote Created By:
Matthew Warren
Regional Sales Manager
Matthew.Warren@
motorolasolutions.com
224-688-1706

End Customer:
TEXARKANA POLICE DEPT, CITY OF 
Jason Shores 
shores@txkusa.org 
903-798-3130 
 

 

  

Freight Terms:PREPAY NO CHARGE TO
CLIENT
Payment Terms:30 NET
 

Summary:
Any sales transaction resulting from Motorola's quote is based on and subject to the applicable Motorola Standard Terms
and Conditions, notwithstanding terms and conditions on purchase orders or other Customer ordering documents.
Motorola Standard Terms and Conditions are found at www.motorolasolutions.com/product-terms.

 

Line #
 

Item Number
 

Description
 

Qty
 

Term
 

Sale Price
 

Ext. Sale Price
 

 

 

 

V700
      

 

 

1
 

WGB-0740A
 

V700 BODY WORN CAMERA
VERIZON READY
 

37
  

$1,290.00
 

$47,730.00
 

 

 

2
 

WGA00668-KIT
 

V300/V700 LOCKING MOLLE
MNT WITH BWC BOX
 

37
  

Included
 

Included
 

 

 

3
 

SWV07S03593A
 

SOFTWARE
ENHANCEMENTS
 

37
 

3 YEAR
 

Included
 

Included
 

 

 

4
 

LSV07S03512A
 

ESSENTIAL SERVICE WITH
ACCIDENTAL DAMAGE AND
ADVANCED REPLACEMENT
 

37
 

3 YEAR
 

$255.00
 

$9,435.00
 

 

 

5
 

WGB-0138A
 

V300 TRANSFER STATION II
 

5
  

$1,495.00
 

$7,475.00
 

 

 

6
 

WGA00640-KIT1
 

V300, USB DOCK, D300,
DESK CHGR/UPLD KIT
 

5
  

$195.00
 

$975.00
 

 

 

7
 

WGP02950
 

VG700 BATTERY, 3.8V,
4180MAH, REMOVABLE
 

37
  

$0.00
 

$0.00
 

 

 

DRAFT
 

QUOTE-2168504
(38) V700 w EL5

 

 

Any sales transaction following Motorola's quote is based on and subject to the terms and conditions of the valid and executed written contract between Customer and Motorola (the ""Underlying
Agreement"") that authorizes Customer to purchase equipment and/or services or license software (collectively ""Products""). If no Underlying Agreement exists between Motorola and Customer, then
Motorola's Standard Terms of Use and Motorola's Standard Terms and Conditions of Sales and Supply shall govern the purchase of the Products.
 Motorola Solutions, Inc.: 500 West Monroe, United States - 60661 ~ #: 36-1115800  
 

Page 2
 



 

Line #
 

Item Number
 

Description
 

Qty
 

Term
 

Sale Price
 

Ext. Sale Price
 

 

 

8
 

WGA00635-KIT
 

V300, WIFI DOCK, D330 VHCL
CHGR/UPLD KIT
 

26
  

$295.00
 

$7,670.00
 

 

 

 

VideoManager EL: Video
Evidence Management
 

     

 

 

9
 

WGP02400-500
 

LICENSE,VIDEOMANAGER EL
ON-PREM SITE LICENSE KEY
 

1
  

$1,000.00
 

$1,000.00
 

 

 

10
 

WGP02400-510
 

VIDEOMANAGER EL, 4RE/
M500 ANNUAL DEVICE
LICENSE & SUPPORT FEE
 

29
 

1 YEAR
 

$45.00
 

$1,305.00
 

 

 

11
 

WGP02400-520
 

VIDEOMANAGER EL, VISTA/
V300 ANNUAL DEVICE
LICENSE & SUPPORT FEE*
 

37
 

1 YEAR
 

$45.00
 

$1,665.00
 

 

 

12
 

WGA00421-217
 

SVR 16 HDD RAID 6 3U 26-75
5CAL GEN 4.
 

1
  

$11,095.00
 

$11,095.00
 

 

 

13
 

WGA00422-1250
 

HD VIDEOMANAGER EL ON-
PREM 12TB 6GB/S 7200 RPM
256MB ENT 4KN
 

12
  

$810.00
 

$9,720.00
 

 

 

14
 

WGS00160-2016
 

SOFTWARE, SQL SERVER
2016, STD, W /5 CAL
 

1
  

Included
 

Included
 

 

 

15
 

WGW00140
 

EXTENDED WARRANTY,
RACK SERVER
(WGA00421-116,-216,-117,-217
)) FULL SERVICE ON SITE, 5-
YEAR
 

1
 

5 YEAR
 

$1,175.00
 

$1,175.00
 

 

 

16
 

WGW00122-400
 

ON-SITE DEPLOYMENT,
TRAINING, CONFIGURATION
AND PROJECT
MANAGEMENT
 

1
  

$5,000.00
 

$5,000.00
 

 

 

17
 

WCM000111-020
 

INTEGRATION
VIDEOMANAGER EL WITH
MOTOROLA CAD/RMS*
 

1
  

$0.00
 

$0.00
 

 

Subtotal
 $104,245.00

 

Estimated Tax
  $10,278.19 

 

Grand Total
 

$114,523.19(USD)
 

0

 

 

DRAFT
 

QUOTE-2168504
(38) V700 w EL5

 

 

Any sales transaction following Motorola's quote is based on and subject to the terms and conditions of the valid and executed written contract between Customer and Motorola (the ""Underlying
Agreement"") that authorizes Customer to purchase equipment and/or services or license software (collectively ""Products""). If no Underlying Agreement exists between Motorola and Customer, then
Motorola's Standard Terms of Use and Motorola's Standard Terms and Conditions of Sales and Supply shall govern the purchase of the Products.
 Motorola Solutions, Inc.: 500 West Monroe, United States - 60661 ~ #: 36-1115800  
 

Page 3
 



Notes:
 

●
 

 

  Additional information is required for one or more items on the quote for an order.
 

 

●
 

 

  Unless otherwise noted in this quote / order, installation of equipment is not included.
 

 

DRAFT
 

QUOTE-2168504
(38) V700 w EL5

 

 

Any sales transaction following Motorola's quote is based on and subject to the terms and conditions of the valid and executed written contract between Customer and Motorola (the ""Underlying
Agreement"") that authorizes Customer to purchase equipment and/or services or license software (collectively ""Products""). If no Underlying Agreement exists between Motorola and Customer, then
Motorola's Standard Terms of Use and Motorola's Standard Terms and Conditions of Sales and Supply shall govern the purchase of the Products.
 Motorola Solutions, Inc.: 500 West Monroe, United States - 60661 ~ #: 36-1115800  
 

Page 4
 



 

 

 

VIDEOMANAGER EL SOLUTION DESCRIPTION 

VideoManager EL simplifies evidence management, automates data maintenance, and facilitates 

management of your department’s devices. 

It is compatible with V300 and VISTA body-worn cameras, as well as M500 and 4RE in-car video 

systems, enabling you to upload video evidence quickly and securely. 

The optional SmartControl and SmartConnect smart device applications support live video streaming 

from body-worn cameras, allowing personnel to view footage captured by the cameras in the app. 

VIDEO EVIDENCE MANAGEMENT 

VideoManager EL delivers benefits to all aspects of video evidence management. From streamlining 

the evidence review process to automatically maintaining your stored data, VideoManager EL makes 

evidence management as efficient as possible. With VideoManager EL, you minimize the amount of 

time spent manually managing evidence, allowing your team to spend more time in the field. 

Simplified Evidence Review 

VideoManager EL makes evidence review easier by allowing you to upload captured video and audio 

from your in-field devices, sharing important information that groups relevant evidence together. This 

information includes a recording’s date and time, device used to capture, event ID, officer name, and 

event type. Incidents recorded from several devices can be found easily and viewed at the same 

time, eliminating the task of reviewing irrelevant footage. 

Its built-in media player includes a visual display of incident data, allowing you to view moments of 

interest, such as when lights, sirens, or brakes were activated during the event timeline, status of 

cameras and microphones, and patrol speed graph. 

Other relevant files, such as PDFs, spreadsheets, reports, third-party videos, audio recordings, 

pictures, drawings, and applicable external files can also be grouped together and stored under a 

specific case entry, allowing all pertinent information to be stored together in VideoManager EL. 

Easy Evidence Sharing 

VideoManager EL empowers you to easily share information in the evidence review or judiciary 

sharing process by exporting evidence data. It is capable of searching for data using various criteria, 

including import, export, playback, download, share, and modification dates, allowing users to quickly 

find relevant evidence. 

Automatic Data Maintenance 

VideoManager EL lets you automatically organize the evidence data you store, allowing you to save 

time that would be spent manually managing it. It can schedule the automatic movement or purging of 

events on any basis, based on how you want to configure the system. 

 

 

DRAFT
 

QUOTE-2168504
(38) V700 w EL5

 

 

Any sales transaction following Motorola's quote is based on and subject to the terms and conditions of the valid and executed written contract between Customer and Motorola (the ""Underlying
Agreement"") that authorizes Customer to purchase equipment and/or services or license software (collectively ""Products""). If no Underlying Agreement exists between Motorola and Customer, then
Motorola's Standard Terms of Use and Motorola's Standard Terms and Conditions of Sales and Supply shall govern the purchase of the Products. 

Page 5
 



 

 

Security groups and permissions are easily set up in VideoManager EL, allowing you to grant 

individuals access to evidence on an as-needed basis. 

Integration with In-Car and Body-Worn Cameras 

Officers on the road are able to automatically upload encrypted video from in-car systems and body 

cameras. This eliminates the need for trips to and from the station solely for uploading data into the 

system. 

Video and audio captured by M500, V300, 4RE and VISTA camera systems are automatically linked 

in VideoManager EL based on time and location. You can then utilize synchronized playback and 

export of video and audio from multiple devices in the same recording group, where video and audio 

streams can be matched together. 

Optional Live Video Streaming 

VideoManager EL integrates with SmartControl, an optional mobile application for Android and iOS 

that allows officers to review video evidence from their smartphone or tablet while they’re still in the 

field. 

SmartControl also allows officers to categorize recordings using event tags, stream live video from, 

and change camera settings, such as adjusting field of view, brightness, and audio levels. 

SmartConnect, an optional smartphone application, provides VISTA body-worn camera users with 

immediate in-field access to their body cameras. SmartConnect includes the ability to pair with VISTA 

cameras, adjust officer preferences, categorize recordings with incident IDs and case numbers, and 

play back recordings. 

DEVICE MANAGEMENT 

Agencies using VideoManager EL can assign users to devices, track them, and streamline shift 

changes. You can easily manage, configure, update firmware, and deploy in-car and body-worn 

cameras. Individual preference settings can be configured based on user profiles, allowing quick 

device transactions within a pooled or assigned device system. VideoManager EL also enables 

devices to be quickly exchanged between officers during shift changes. This minimizes the number of 

devices needed for your fleet. 

Device Tracking 

You can easily manage, configure, and deploy your in-car and body-worn cameras in VideoManager 

EL. Devices can be assigned to personnel within VideoManager EL and tracked, helping agencies 

keep track of which users have specific devices. 

Faster Shift Changes 

VideoManager EL’s Rapid Checkout Kiosk feature allows agencies using a pooled camera system to 

use fewer cameras. Cameras can be checked out at the start of a shift using an easy-to-use 

interface. At the end of the shift, the camera can be returned to its dock, where the video is 

automatically uploaded and the camera is made ready to be checked out and used for the next shift. 

 

 

DRAFT
 

QUOTE-2168504
(38) V700 w EL5

 

 

Any sales transaction following Motorola's quote is based on and subject to the terms and conditions of the valid and executed written contract between Customer and Motorola (the ""Underlying
Agreement"") that authorizes Customer to purchase equipment and/or services or license software (collectively ""Products""). If no Underlying Agreement exists between Motorola and Customer, then
Motorola's Standard Terms of Use and Motorola's Standard Terms and Conditions of Sales and Supply shall govern the purchase of the Products. 

Page 6
 



 

 

Devices can also be configured to remember individual preference settings for each user, including 

haptic and audible alert volume level, screen brightness and camera aim. These settings are applied 

whenever a device is assigned to a specific officer. A variety of settings within VideoManager EL also 

enable you to configure devices to operate in alignment 

 

 

DRAFT
 

QUOTE-2168504
(38) V700 w EL5

 

 

Any sales transaction following Motorola's quote is based on and subject to the terms and conditions of the valid and executed written contract between Customer and Motorola (the ""Underlying
Agreement"") that authorizes Customer to purchase equipment and/or services or license software (collectively ""Products""). If no Underlying Agreement exists between Motorola and Customer, then
Motorola's Standard Terms of Use and Motorola's Standard Terms and Conditions of Sales and Supply shall govern the purchase of the Products. 

Page 7
 



VIDEO EVIDENCE STATEMENT OF WORK
 

Overview 
 
In accordance with the terms and conditions of the Agreement, this Statement of Work (“SOW”) defines
the principal activities and responsibilities of all parties for the delivery of the Motorola Solutions, Inc.
(“Motorola”) system as presented in this offer to the Customer(hereinafter referred to as “Customer”). For
the purposes of this SOW, Motorola may include our affiliates, subcontractors, and third-party partners, as
the case may be.
 
Deviations and changes to this SOW are subject to mutual agreement between Motorola and the
Customer and will be addressed in accordance with the change provisions of the Agreement.
 
Unless specifically stated, Motorola work will be performed remotely. Customer will provide Motorola
resources with direct network access sufficient to enable Motorola to fulfill its delivery obligations.
 
The number and type of software or subscription licenses, products, or services provided by or on behalf
of Motorola are specifically listed in the Agreement and any reference within this SOW, as well as
subcontractors’ SOWs (if applicable), does not imply or convey a software or subscription license or
service that is not explicitly listed in the Agreement.
 

AWARD, ADMINISTRATION, AND PROJECT INITIATION
 
Project Initiation and Planning will begin following execution of the Agreement.
 
Following the conclusion of the Welcome/IT Call, Motorola project personnel will communicate additional
project information via email, phone call, or additional ad-  hoc meetings.
 
Motorola utilizes Google Meet as its teleconference tool. If Customer desires a different teleconference
tool, Customer may provide a mutually agreeable alternate tool at Customer expense.
 

PROJECT MANAGEMENT TERMS
 
The following project management terms are used in this SOW. Since these terms may be used
differently in other settings, these definitions are provided for clarity.
 
Deployment Date(s) refers to any date or range of dates when implementation, configuration, and
training will occur. The deployment date(s) is subject to change based on equipment or resource
availability and Customer readiness.
 
COMPLETION CRITERIA 
 
Motorola Integration Services are complete upon Motorola performing the last task listed in a series of
responsibilities or as specifically stated in the deployment checklist. Certain Customer tasks, such as
hardware installation activities identified in Section 1.9 of this SOW, must be completed prior to Motorola
commencing with its delivery obligations. Customer will provide Motorola written notification that it does
not accept the completion of Motorola responsibilities or rejects a Motorola service deliverable within five
business days of task completion or receipt of a deliverable, whichever may be applicable.

 

 

DRAFT
 

QUOTE-2168504
(38) V700 w EL5

 

 

Any sales transaction following Motorola's quote is based on and subject to the terms and conditions of the valid and executed written contract between Customer and Motorola (the ""Underlying
Agreement"") that authorizes Customer to purchase equipment and/or services or license software (collectively ""Products""). If no Underlying Agreement exists between Motorola and Customer, then
Motorola's Standard Terms of Use and Motorola's Standard Terms and Conditions of Sales and Supply shall govern the purchase of the Products. 

Page 8
 



 
Service completion will be acknowledged in accordance with the terms of the Agreement and the Service
Completion Date will be memorialized by Motorola and Customer in a writing signed by both parties.
 
PROJECT ROLES AND RESPONSIBILITIES OVERVIEW
 
MOTOROLA PROJECT ROLES AND RESPONSIBILITIES
 
A Motorola team, made up of specialized personnel, will be assigned to the project under the direction of
the Motorola Project Manager. Team members will be multi-disciplinary and may fill more than one role.
Team members will be engaged in different phases of the project as necessary.
 
In order to maximize efficiencies, Motorola’s project team will provide services remotely via
teleconference, web-conference, or other remote method in fulfilling its commitments as outlined in this
SOW.
 
The personnel role descriptions noted below provide an overview of typical project team members. One
or more resources of the same type may be engaged as needed throughout the project. There may be
other personnel engaged in the project at the discretion of and under the direction of the Project Manager.
 
Motorola’s project management approach has been developed and refined based on lessons learned in
the execution of hundreds of system implementations. Using experienced and dedicated people, industry-
leading processes, and integrated software tools for effective project execution and control, we have
developed and refined practices that support the design, production, and testing required to deliver a
high-quality, feature-rich system.
 
Project Manager
 
A Motorola Project Manager will be assigned as the principal business representative and point of contact
for Motorola. The Project Manager’s responsibilities include the following:
 
• Host the Welcome/IT Call.
• Manage the Motorola responsibilities related to the delivery of the project.
• Coordinate schedules of the assigned Motorola personnel and applicable subcontractors/supplier

resources.
• Manage the Change Order process per the Agreement.
• Maintain project communications with the Customer.
• Identify and manage project risks.
• Collaborative coordination of Customer resources to minimize and avoid project delays.
• Conduct remote status meetings on mutually agreed dates to discuss project status.
• Provide timely responses to issues related to project progress.
 
System Technologists
 
The Motorola System Technologists (ST) will work with the Customer project team on system
provisioning. ST responsibilities include the following:
 
• Provide consultation services to the Customer regarding the provisioning and operation of the Motorola

system.
• Provide provisioning and training to the Customer to set up and maintain the system.
• Complete the provisioning ownership handoff to the Customer.

 

 

DRAFT
 

QUOTE-2168504
(38) V700 w EL5

 

 

Any sales transaction following Motorola's quote is based on and subject to the terms and conditions of the valid and executed written contract between Customer and Motorola (the ""Underlying
Agreement"") that authorizes Customer to purchase equipment and/or services or license software (collectively ""Products""). If no Underlying Agreement exists between Motorola and Customer, then
Motorola's Standard Terms of Use and Motorola's Standard Terms and Conditions of Sales and Supply shall govern the purchase of the Products. 

Page 9
 



• Complete the project-defined tasks as defined in this SOW.
• Confirmation that the delivered technical elements meet contracted requirements.
• Engagement throughout the duration of the delivery.
 
 
Technical Trainer / Instructor
 
The Motorola Technical Trainer / Instructor provides training either on-site or remote (virtual) depending
on the training topic and deployment type purchased. Responsibilities include:
 
• Review the role of the Learning eXperience Portal (“LXP”) in the delivery and provide Customer

Username and Access Information.
 
 
CUSTOMER PROJECT ROLES AND RESPONSIBILITIES OVERVIEW 
 
The success of the project is dependent on early assignment of key Customer resources. In many cases,
the Customer will provide project roles that correspond with Motorola’s project roles. It is critical that these
resources are empowered to make decisions based on the Customer’s operational and administration
needs. The Customer’s project team should be engaged from project initiation through beneficial use of
the system. The continued involvement in the project and use of the system will convey the required
knowledge to maintain the system post-completion of the project. In some cases, one person may fill
multiple project roles. The project team must be committed to participate in activities for a successful
implementation. In the event the Customer is unable to provide the roles identified in this section,
Motorola may be able to supplement Customer resources at an additional price.
 
Project Manager
 
The Project Manager will act as the primary Customer point of contact for the duration of the project. The
Project Manager is responsible for management of any third-party vendors that are the Customer’s
subcontractors. In the event the project involves multiple locations, Motorola will work exclusively with a
single Customer-assigned Project Manager (the primary Project Manager). The Project Manager’s
responsibilities include the following:
 
• Communicate and coordinate with other project participants.
• Manage the Customer project team, including timely facilitation of efforts, tasks, and activities.
• Maintain project communications with the Motorola Project Manager.
• Identify the efforts required of Customer staff to meet the task requirements in this SOW and identified

in the Welcome/IT Call.
• Consolidate all project-related questions and queries from Customer staff to present to the Motorola

Project Manager.
• Approve a deployment date offered by Motorola.
• Monitor the project to ensure resources are available as required.
• Attend status meetings.
• Provide timely responses to issues related to project progress.
• Liaise and coordinate with other agencies, Customer vendors, contractors, and common carriers.
• Review and administer change control procedures, hardware and software certification, and all related

project tasks required to meet the deployment date.
• Ensure Customer vendors’ readiness ahead of the deployment date. 
• Assign one or more personnel who will work with Motorola staff as needed for the duration of the

project, including at least one Application Administrator for the system and one or more
representative(s) from the IT department.

 

 

DRAFT
 

QUOTE-2168504
(38) V700 w EL5

 

 

Any sales transaction following Motorola's quote is based on and subject to the terms and conditions of the valid and executed written contract between Customer and Motorola (the ""Underlying
Agreement"") that authorizes Customer to purchase equipment and/or services or license software (collectively ""Products""). If no Underlying Agreement exists between Motorola and Customer, then
Motorola's Standard Terms of Use and Motorola's Standard Terms and Conditions of Sales and Supply shall govern the purchase of the Products. 

Page 10
 



• Identify the resource with authority to formally acknowledge and approve change orders, completion of
work, and payments in a timely manner.

• Provide building access to Motorola personnel to all Customer facilities where system equipment is to
be installed during the project. Temporary identification cards are to be issued to Motorola personnel, if
required for access to facilities.

• Ensure remote network connectivity and access to Motorola resources.
• Provide reasonable care to prevent equipment exposure to contaminants that cause damage to the

equipment or interruption of service.
• Ensure a safe work environment for Motorola personnel.
• Identify and manage project risks.
• Point of contact to work with the Motorola System Technologists to facilitate the training plan.
 
IT Support Team
 
The IT Support Team (or Customer designee) manages the technical efforts and ongoing tasks and
activities of their system. Manage the Customer-owned provisioning maintenance and provide required
information related to LAN, WAN, wireless networks, server, and client infrastructure. They must also be
familiar with connectivity to internal, external, and third-party systems to which the Motorola system will
interface.
 
The IT Support Team responsibilities include the following:
 
• Participate in overall delivery and training activities to understand the software, interfaces, and

functionality of the system.
• Participate with the Customer subject matter experts during the provisioning process and training.
• Authorize global provisioning choices and decisions, and be the point(s) of contact for reporting and

verifying problems and maintaining provisioning.
• Obtain inputs from other user agency stakeholders related to business processes and provisioning.
• Implement changes to Customer owned and maintained infrastructure in support of the Evidence

Management System installation.
 
Subject Matter Experts
 
The Subject Matter Experts (SME or Super Users) are the core group of users involved with delivery
analysis, training, and the provisioning process, including making global provisioning choices and
decisions. These members should be experienced users in the working area(s) they represent (dispatch,
patrol, etc.), and should be empowered to make decisions related to provisioning elements, workflows,
and department policies related to the Evidence Management System.
 
General Customer Responsibilities
 
In addition to the Customer Responsibilities stated elsewhere in this SOW, the Customer is responsible
for the following:
 
• All Customer-provided equipment, including hardware and third-party software, necessary for delivery

of the System not specifically listed as a Motorola deliverable. This will include end user workstations,
network equipment, camera equipment and the like.

• Configuration, maintenance, testing, and supporting the third-party systems the Customer operates
which will be interfaced to as part of this project.

• Communication between Motorola and Customer’s third-party vendors, as required, to enable Motorola
to perform its duties.

 

 

DRAFT
 

QUOTE-2168504
(38) V700 w EL5

 

 

Any sales transaction following Motorola's quote is based on and subject to the terms and conditions of the valid and executed written contract between Customer and Motorola (the ""Underlying
Agreement"") that authorizes Customer to purchase equipment and/or services or license software (collectively ""Products""). If no Underlying Agreement exists between Motorola and Customer, then
Motorola's Standard Terms of Use and Motorola's Standard Terms and Conditions of Sales and Supply shall govern the purchase of the Products. 

Page 11
 



• Active participation of Customer SMEs in project delivery meetings and working sessions during the
course of the project. Customer SMEs will possess requisite knowledge of Customer operations and
legacy system(s) and possess skills and abilities to operate and manage the system.

• Electronic versions of any documentation associated with the business processes identified.
• Providing a facility with the required computer and audio-visual equipment for training and work

sessions.
• Ability to participate in remote project meeting sessions using Google Meet or a mutually agreeable,

Customer-provided, alternate remote conferencing solution.
 
 

PROJECT PLANNING
 
A clear understanding of the needs and expectations of both Motorola and the Customer are critical to
fostering a collaborative environment of trust and mutual respect. Project Planning requires the gathering
of project-specific information in order to set clear project expectations and guidelines, and set the
foundation for a successful implementation.
 
WELCOME/IT CALL - TELECONFERENCE/WEB MEETING
 
A Project Planning Session teleconference will be scheduled after the Agreement has been executed.
The agenda will include the following:
 
• Review the Agreement documents.
• Review project delivery requirements as described in this SOW.
• Provide shipping information for all purchased equipment.
• Discuss deployment date activities.
• Provide assigned technician information.
• Review IT questionnaire and customer infrastructure.
• Discuss which tasks will be conducted by Motorola resources.
• Discuss Customer involvement in provisioning and data gathering to confirm understanding of the

scope and required time commitments.
• Review the initial project tasks and incorporate Customer feedback. 
• Confirm CJIS background investigations and fingerprint requirements for Motorola employees and/or

contractors. Required fingerprints will be submitted on Motorola provided FBI FD-258 Fingerprint cards.
• Review the On-line Training system role in project delivery and provide Customer User Name and

Access Information.
• Discuss Motorola remote access requirements (24-hour access to a secured two-way Internet

connection to the Motorola system firewalls for the purposes of deployment, maintenance, and
monitoring).

• Discuss Customer obligation to manage change among the stakeholder and user communities.
• Review deployment completion criteria and the process for transitioning to support.
 
Motorola Responsibilities
 
• Host Welcome/IT Call.
• Request the attendance of any additional Customer resources that are instrumental in the project's

success, as needed.
• Review Motorola’s delivery approach and its reliance on Customer-provided remote access.
• Provide Customers with steps to follow to register for Online Training.
• Request user information required to establish the Customer in the LXP.

 

 

DRAFT
 

QUOTE-2168504
(38) V700 w EL5

 

 

Any sales transaction following Motorola's quote is based on and subject to the terms and conditions of the valid and executed written contract between Customer and Motorola (the ""Underlying
Agreement"") that authorizes Customer to purchase equipment and/or services or license software (collectively ""Products""). If no Underlying Agreement exists between Motorola and Customer, then
Motorola's Standard Terms of Use and Motorola's Standard Terms and Conditions of Sales and Supply shall govern the purchase of the Products. 

Page 12
 



 
Customer Responsibilities
 
Complete the Online Training registration form and provide it to Motorola within ten business days of the
Project Planning Session.
 
• Review the received (as part of order) and completed IT questionnaire. 
• Provide a customer point of contact for the project.
• Provide data for completing the policy validation form.
• Provide LXP user information as requested by Motorola.
• Verify Customer Administrator(s) have access to the LXP.
 
Motorola Deliverables
 
• Welcome Call presentation and key meeting notes
• Send an email confirming deployment date and ST assigned email
• Communicate with the Customer via email confirming shipment and tracking information.
• Instruct the Customer on How to Register for Training email.
• Provide and review the Training Plan.
 
SOLUTION PROVISIONING 
 
Solution provisioning includes the configuration of user configurable parameters (unit names, personnel,
and status codes). The system will be provisioned using Motorola standard provisioning parameters and
will incorporate Customer-specific provisioning.
 
IN-CAR VIDEO PROVISIONING SCENARIO
 
If in-car video is a part of the system, the Motorola Application Specialist will complete the following
provisioning tasks.
 
Motorola Responsibilities
 
• Conduct a remote review of the standard provisioning database with the Customer prior to the start of

provisioning.
• Provide and review the Provisioning Export Worksheets with the Customer.
• Conduct a conference call with the Customer to review the completeness of the Provisioning Export

Worksheets prior to the start of provisioning.
 
BODY WORN CAMERA PROVISIONING SCENARIO
 
If body worn cameras are a part of the system, the provisioning of the in-car system will generally follow
the completion of the base in-car video provisioning.
 
Motorola Responsibilities
 
Configure transfer stations for connectivity to the evidence management server.
 
• Configure devices within the evidence management system.
• Check out devices and create a test recording.

 

 

DRAFT
 

QUOTE-2168504
(38) V700 w EL5

 

 

Any sales transaction following Motorola's quote is based on and subject to the terms and conditions of the valid and executed written contract between Customer and Motorola (the ""Underlying
Agreement"") that authorizes Customer to purchase equipment and/or services or license software (collectively ""Products""). If no Underlying Agreement exists between Motorola and Customer, then
Motorola's Standard Terms of Use and Motorola's Standard Terms and Conditions of Sales and Supply shall govern the purchase of the Products. 

Page 13
 



• Verify successful upload from devices after docking back into the transfer station or USB dock.
 
 
SOFTWARE INSTALLATION 
 
ON-SITE SOFTWARE INSTALLATION
 
Client software will be installed on one workstations and up to 5 mobile devices to facilitate provisioning
training to Customer personnel. Customer will complete software installation on the remaining
workstations and cameras.
 
Motorola Responsibilities
 
• Verify system readiness.
• Request client software.
• Deliver the pre-installation preparation checklist.
• Provide instruction on client software installation and install client software on one workstation and up to
five mobile devices.
• Total of training overview sessions shall not exceed 4 hours.
• Provide instruction on client software deployment utility.
 
Customer Responsibilities
 
• Provide and install workstation/mobile device hardware in accordance with specifications.
• Assign personnel to observe software installation training.
• Complete installation of client software on remaining workstations and mobile devices.
• Attend onsite deployment training sufficient to enable user proficiency.
• Complete online training.
 
Motorola Deliverables
 
• Provide a pre-installation preparation checklist.
• Provide installation guide.
• Provide training overviews on hardware/software and system administration for customers during
deployment dates.
 
 

INFRASTRUCTURE VALIDATION
 
Hardware will be installed on the network to facilitate provisioning, testing, and will be used to provide
instruction to Customer personnel after the complete software installation.
 
Motorola Responsibilities
 
• Verify that the server is properly racked and connected to the network.
• Verify that access points are properly installed and connected to the network.
• Verify that transfer stations are connected to the network and configured.
 
Customer Responsibilities

 

 

DRAFT
 

QUOTE-2168504
(38) V700 w EL5

 

 

Any sales transaction following Motorola's quote is based on and subject to the terms and conditions of the valid and executed written contract between Customer and Motorola (the ""Underlying
Agreement"") that authorizes Customer to purchase equipment and/or services or license software (collectively ""Products""). If no Underlying Agreement exists between Motorola and Customer, then
Motorola's Standard Terms of Use and Motorola's Standard Terms and Conditions of Sales and Supply shall govern the purchase of the Products. 

Page 14
 



 
• Verify that the server network has access to the internet for software installation and updates.
• Verify that the network routing is correct for the transfer stations and access points to communicate with

the server.
• Verify that the client computers can access the server on the required ports.
 
HARDWARE INSTALLATION
 
Physical installation of hardware (i.e. servers, cameras, Access Points, WiFi docs, etc.) is not included in
the standard scope of the solution. If a custom quote for installations is included in this purchase,
Motorola will manage the subcontractor and their deliverables as part of this SOW. Customers who
perform or procure their own installations assume all installation responsibilities including cost, oversight
and risk.
 

SYSTEM TRAINING
 
Motorola training consists of both computer-based (online) and instructor-led (on-site or remote). Training
delivery methods vary depending on course content. Self-paced online training courses, additional live
training, documentation, and resources can be accessed and registered for on the Motorola’s LXP.
 
ONLINE TRAINING
 
Online training is made available to the Customer via Motorola’s LXP. This subscription service provides
the Customer with continual access to our library of online learning content and allows users the benefit
of learning at times convenient to them. Content is added and updated on a regular basis to keep
information current. This training modality allows the Customer to engage in training when convenient.
 
A list of available online training courses can be found in the Training Plan.
 
Motorola Responsibilities
 
• Designate a LXP Administrator to work with the Customer.
• Establish an accessible instance of the LXP for the Customer.
• Organize content to align with the Customer’s selected technologies.
• Create initial Customer user accounts and a single Primary Administrator account.
• During on-boarding, assist the Customer with LXP usage by providing training and job aids as needed.
• Create and maintain user role Learning Paths defined by the Customer.
• Install security patches when available.
• Provide technical support for user account and access issues, base system functionality, and Motorola

Solutions-managed content.
• Monitor the Learning Subscription server. Provide support for server incidents.
 
Customer Responsibilities
 
• Provide user information for the initial creation of accounts.
• Provide network and internet connectivity for the Customer’s users to access the LXP.
• The customer's primary LXP administrator should complete the following self-paced training: LXP

Introduction online course (LXP0001), LXP Primary Site Administrator Overview online course
(LXP0002), and LXP Group Administrator Overview (LXP0003)

• Advise agency learners of the availability of training via the LXP.
• Ensure users complete LXP training in accordance with the Project Schedule.

 

 

DRAFT
 

QUOTE-2168504
(38) V700 w EL5

 

 

Any sales transaction following Motorola's quote is based on and subject to the terms and conditions of the valid and executed written contract between Customer and Motorola (the ""Underlying
Agreement"") that authorizes Customer to purchase equipment and/or services or license software (collectively ""Products""). If no Underlying Agreement exists between Motorola and Customer, then
Motorola's Standard Terms of Use and Motorola's Standard Terms and Conditions of Sales and Supply shall govern the purchase of the Products. 

Page 15
 



• Order and maintain subscriptions to access Motorola’s LXP.
• Contact Motorola Solutions to engage Technical Support when needed.
 
Motorola Deliverables
 
• LXP Enable
 
INSTRUCTOR-LED TRAINING (ONSITE AND REMOTE)
 
A list of Instructor-Led and Virtual Instructor-Led courses can be found in the Training Plan.
 
Motorola Responsibilities
 
• Deliver User Guides and training materials in electronic .PDF format.
• Perform training in accordance with the Training Plan.
• Provide Customer with training Attendance Rosters and summarize any pertinent observations that

may impact end user training.
 
Customer Responsibilities
 
• Supply classrooms with a workstation for the instructor (if Onsite) and at least one workstation for every

student based on the requirements listed in the Training Plan.
• Designate training representatives who will work with the Motorola trainers in the delivery of training.
• Conduct end user training in accordance with the Project Schedule.
 
Motorola Deliverables
 
• Electronic versions of User Guides and training materials.
• Attendance Rosters.
• Technical Training Catalog.
 

FUNCTIONAL VALIDATION AND PROJECT CLOSURE
 
The objective of Functional Validation is to demonstrate the features and functions of the system in the
Customer’s provisioned environment. The functional demonstration may not exercise all functions of the
system, if identified as not being applicable to the Customer’s operations or for which the system has not
been provisioned. The functional demonstration is a critical activity that must occur following the
completion of provisioning.
 
Motorola Responsibilities
 
• Conduct a power on functional demonstration of the installed system per the deployment  checklist
• Manage to resolution any documented punch list items noted on the deployment checklist.
• Provide trip report outlining all activities completed during the installation as well as outstanding follow

up items
• Provide an overview of the support process and how to request support.
• Walk through support resources, web ticket entry and escalation procedures.
• Provide a customer survey upon closure of the project.
 
Customer Responsibilities

 

 

DRAFT
 

QUOTE-2168504
(38) V700 w EL5

 

 

Any sales transaction following Motorola's quote is based on and subject to the terms and conditions of the valid and executed written contract between Customer and Motorola (the ""Underlying
Agreement"") that authorizes Customer to purchase equipment and/or services or license software (collectively ""Products""). If no Underlying Agreement exists between Motorola and Customer, then
Motorola's Standard Terms of Use and Motorola's Standard Terms and Conditions of Sales and Supply shall govern the purchase of the Products. 

Page 16
 



 
• Witness the functional demonstration and acknowledge its completion via signature on the deployment

checklist.
• Participate in prioritizing the punch list.
• Coordinate and manage Customer action as noted in the punch list.
• Provide signatory approval on the deployment checklist providing Motorola with final acceptance.
• Complete Customer Survey.
 

 

 

DRAFT
 

QUOTE-2168504
(38) V700 w EL5

 

 

Any sales transaction following Motorola's quote is based on and subject to the terms and conditions of the valid and executed written contract between Customer and Motorola (the ""Underlying
Agreement"") that authorizes Customer to purchase equipment and/or services or license software (collectively ""Products""). If no Underlying Agreement exists between Motorola and Customer, then
Motorola's Standard Terms of Use and Motorola's Standard Terms and Conditions of Sales and Supply shall govern the purchase of the Products. 

Page 17
 



1V700 BODY-WORN CAMERA SOLUTION DESCRIPTION

The V700 body-worn camera captures clear video and audio of every encounter from
the user’s perspective. Its continuous- operation capabilities allow constant recording,
helping the user to capture every detail of each situation and create a reliable library of
evidence for case-building and review. The V700 can stream live video and report real
time GPS location through a built-in LTE modem, directly to the suite of
CommandCentral applications.

The V700 is easy to operate, with four control buttons. Its innate
Record-After-the-Fact® (RATF) technology enables the device to capture important
video evidence that can be retrieved hours or days after an incident occurs, even if a
recording is not triggered by the user or sensor. With RATF, officers can prioritize
response to immediate threats versus manually activating their camera.

1.1. KEY FEATURES OF THE V700

● Detachable Battery – The V700’s detachable battery allows officers to switch to a fully-charged battery if
their shift goes longer than expected. Since the battery charges without being attached to the V700, the
battery is kept fully charged in the dock ready for use. This feature is especially helpful for agencies that share
body-worn cameras with multiple officers.

● Wireless Uploading – Recordings made by the V700 are uploaded to the agency’s evidence management
system via LTE. Upload over WiFi will be available soon. This enables easy transfer of critical recordings to
headquarters for immediate review or long-term storage.

● Real-time Location and Video Streaming – With built-in LTE connectivity, the V700 paired with
CommandCentral Aware will send location updates and stream live video to a dispatch center or Real Time
Crime Center (RTCC) giving the agency a complete and accurate view of their officers for better coordination
and quicker response times.

● LTE Service Ready – The V700 is approved for use on Verizon and FirstNet networks in the U.S. and Bell
Mobility in Canada. The V700 will ship with a pre-installed SIM from both carriers, ready for service activation
upon arrival with a data plan that best suits the agency’s needs. LTE service activation would be on the
agency’s carrier account. Motorola Solutions does not provide LTE service for the V700 camera.

● Data Encryption – The V700 uses FIPS-140-2 compliant encryption at-rest and in-transit. This ensures
recordings made by the agency’s officers are secure from unauthorized access.

● Record-After-The-Fact® – Our patented Record-After-the-Fact® technology captures footage even when the
recording function is not engaged. The camera user or admin can request video footage from a specific point
in the past to be uploaded to the evidence management system, hours or even days after the event occurred.

● Natural Field of View – The V700 eliminates the fisheye effect from wide-angle lenses that warps video
footage. Distortion correction ensures a clear and complete evidence review process. The V700’s high quality,
low light sensor captures an accurate depiction of recorded events, even in challenging lighting conditions.

● SmartControl Application – To maximize efficiency in the field, the Motorola Solutions SmartControl app
enables V700 users to preview video recordings, add or edit tags, change camera settings and view live video
from the camera. The app is available for both iOS and Android phones.

● In-Field Tagging – The V700 enables easy in-field event tagging. It allows officers to view event
tags and save them to the appropriate category directly from the body-worn camera or via the
SmartControl app.

Page 1

 

 

DRAFT
 

QUOTE-2168504
(38) V700 w EL5

 

 

 
Any sales transaction following Motorola's quote is based on and subject to the terms and conditions of the valid and executed written contract between Customer and Motorola (the ""Underlying
Agreement"") that authorizes Customer to purchase equipment and/or services or license software (collectively ""Products""). If no Underlying Agreement exists between Motorola and Customer, then
Motorola's Standard Terms of Use and Motorola's Standard Terms and Conditions of Sales and Supply shall govern the purchase of the Products. 



● Auto Activation – The V700 body-worn camera(s) paired with an M500 or 4RE in-car video system(s)
can form a recording group, which automatically starts recording when one of the devices begins to
record. Each device can be configured to initiate a group recording using triggers like lights, sirens,
doors, gun racks, and other auxiliary inputs. Up to eight V700s can form a recording group and
collaborate on recordings, without a corresponding in-car video system, using similar triggers. Group
recordings are uploaded and automatically linked to the evidence management system as part of one event.

1.2. V700 AND IN-CAR VIDEO INTEGRATION

The V700 integrates seamlessly with the M500 or 4RE in-car video systems, capturing video of an
incident from multiple vantage points. This integration includes the following features:

● Distributed Multi-Peer Recording – Multiple V700 body-worn cameras and in-car video systems can form a
recording group and based on the configuration, automatically start recording when one of the devices begins
to record. Group recordings are uploaded and automatically linked to the evidence management system as
part of one incident.

● Automatic Tag Pairing – Recordings captured by integrated V700 body-worn cameras and in-car video
systems can be uploaded to the evidence management system with the same tags. From the in-car video
system’s display, videos can be saved under the appropriate tag category. The tag is then automatically
shared with the V700 video and uploaded as part of one incident along with the officer’s name.

● Evidence Management Software – When V700 body-worn cameras and in-car video systems record the
same incident, the Motorola Solutions evidence management software automatically links those recordings
based on officer name, date, and time overlap.

● Additional Audio Source – The V700 can serve as an additional audio source when integrated with the
in-car video system. The V700 also provides an additional view of the incident and inherits the event
properties of the in-car video system’s record, such as officer name, event category, and more, based on
configuration.

1.3. V700 AND APX RADIO INTEGRATION

Motorola Solutions’ APX two-way radios can pair with V700 body-worn cameras to automate video capture
through Bluetooth. When the APX’s emergency mode button is pressed, or the ManDown feature is activated, the
V700 is triggered to start recording immediately. The recording will continue until manually stopped by the officer
via the start/stop button on the V700 or group in-car video system.

1.4. HOLSTER AWARETM INTEGRATION

The V700 integrates with a Holster AwareTM sensor through Bluetooth. If configured, the sensor automatically
prompts the V700 to record the moment the holstered equipment is drawn. The holster sensor information is
stored with the V700 user profile and uploaded to the evidence management system. If the user is assigned to a
different camera, the hoster sensor information will be applied to the new camera. The holster sensor allows
officers to record high-stress events as they unfold, without having to sacrifice situational awareness by manually
activating the V700.

Page 2

 

 

DRAFT
 

QUOTE-2168504
(38) V700 w EL5

 

 

 
Any sales transaction following Motorola's quote is based on and subject to the terms and conditions of the valid and executed written contract between Customer and Motorola (the ""Underlying
Agreement"") that authorizes Customer to purchase equipment and/or services or license software (collectively ""Products""). If no Underlying Agreement exists between Motorola and Customer, then
Motorola's Standard Terms of Use and Motorola's Standard Terms and Conditions of Sales and Supply shall govern the purchase of the Products. 



1.5. DOCKING STATIONS

The V700 has three docking options:

Transfer Station – The Transfer Station is built for large, multi-location agencies
with large numbers of V700 cameras in service at any given time. It can charge up
to eight fully assembled body-worn cameras or individual batteries. The eight
docking slots include an LED indication of a battery charging and upload status.
While the V700 charges, the Transfer Station can automatically offload recordings
from the camera to the evidence management system via an integrated 2.5Gb
switch. The Transfer Station connects directly to the LAN for fast offload of recorded
events to storage, while charging the body-worn camera battery. The Transfer
Station supports comprehensive device management capabilities, such as camera
configuration, checkout and officer assignment options; rapid checkout, kiosk, and
individual camera checkout; automatic firmware and configuration updates.

USB Base – The USB Base charges the battery of a single V700 or standalone
battery pack. The USB Base can be mounted in a vehicle or attached to a desktop
or Mobile Data Computer with 12V or USB connection for power. The USB Base has
LED indications for battery charging status and upload, and an ambient light sensor
for optimal LED brightness control from bright sunlight to the dim interior of a patrol
car. When connected to a laptop or desktop computer, the USB Base can be used to
upload recordings to the evidence management system, as well as, receive
firmware and configuration updates.

Wi-Fi Base – The Wi-Fi Base is mounted in a vehicle. It facilitates V700 upload of
video evidence to the evidence management system, firmware updates,
communication between V700 and in-car video system group devices and charges
fully assembled V700s or individual battery packs. It has LED indications of battery
charging status and upload, and an ambient light sensor for optimal LED brightness
control, from bright sunlight to the dim interior of a patrol car.

Page 3

 

 

DRAFT
 

QUOTE-2168504
(38) V700 w EL5

 

 

 
Any sales transaction following Motorola's quote is based on and subject to the terms and conditions of the valid and executed written contract between Customer and Motorola (the ""Underlying
Agreement"") that authorizes Customer to purchase equipment and/or services or license software (collectively ""Products""). If no Underlying Agreement exists between Motorola and Customer, then
Motorola's Standard Terms of Use and Motorola's Standard Terms and Conditions of Sales and Supply shall govern the purchase of the Products. 



1.6. MOUNTING SOLUTIONS

V700 is compatible with the entire line of V300 mounting solutions as depicted below.

Page 4

 

 

DRAFT
 

QUOTE-2168504
(38) V700 w EL5

 

 

 
Any sales transaction following Motorola's quote is based on and subject to the terms and conditions of the valid and executed written contract between Customer and Motorola (the ""Underlying
Agreement"") that authorizes Customer to purchase equipment and/or services or license software (collectively ""Products""). If no Underlying Agreement exists between Motorola and Customer, then
Motorola's Standard Terms of Use and Motorola's Standard Terms and Conditions of Sales and Supply shall govern the purchase of the Products. 







ORDINANCE NO. _________ 

AN ORDINANCE WAIVING COMPETITIVE 

BIDDING; AUTHORIZING THE ACTING CITY 

MANAGER TO ENTER INTO AN AGREEMENT 

WITH MOTOROLA SOLUTIONS, INC., FOR THE 

PURCHASE OF THIRTY-SEVEN WATCHGUARD 

BODY CAMERAS; FOR DECLARING AN 

EMERGENCY; AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES 

 
WHEREAS, the Texarkana, Arkansas Police Department is requesting the Board 

of Directors approve the purchase of thirty-seven (37) Watchguard Body Cameras and 

related software, hardware, licenses, and warranties; and 

 WHEREAS, this request is made in order to update and expand its current body 

camera system; and  

WHEREAS, Motorola Solutions, Inc., has submitted a proposal to upgrade and 

expand the Body Camera system at a total cost $114,523.19; and 

 WHEREAS, a $100,000 Arkansas State Equipment grant was previously awarded 

and is available as well as a $14,000 Motorola Solutions/Watchguard credit; and  

WHEREAS, Motorola Solutions, Inc., is the same company the City used to 

purchase its existing body camera system and they have the unique ability to upgrade and 

expand the existing system; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Ark. Code Ann. § 14-47-138, the Board of Directors may 

waive the requirements of competitive bidding in exceptional situations where competitive 

bidding is not feasible; and 

 WHEREAS, it is not feasible or practicable to engage in competitive bidding 

because Motorola Solutions, Inc., is considered a sole source; and  

 WHEREAS, in consideration of and for the reasons set forth above, the Texarkana, 

Arkansas Police Department does request that any competitive bidding practices otherwise 

required by applicable statue and ordinance be waived as permitted by Ark. Code Ann. § 



14-47-138 and § 2-27 of the City of Texarkana, Arkansas, Code of Ordinances and the 

purchase of the items described above be approved; 

 WHEREAS, the Acting City Manager and Staff recommend approval; 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Board of Directors of the City 

of Texarkana, Arkansas: 

 

Section 1: The competitive bidding practices contemplated by applicable law 

and ordinance are waived and the Acting City Manager is authorized to enter into any 

agreement with Motorola Solutions, Inc., thirty-seven (37) Watchguard Body Cameras and 

related software, hardware, licenses, and warranties described herein on the terms, 

conditions, and in an amount not to exceed $114,523.19. 

 

Section 2:  This action being necessary for the preservation of the public peace, 

health, and safety (including the need to commence prompt acquisition and installation of 

said needed hardware, software and support), and a separate and distinct vote having been 

taken on this emergency clause, an emergency is therefore declared to exist, and this 

ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after its passage and approval.   

 

 PASSED AND APPROVED this 3rd day of July, 2023.   

 

      

 _________________________________ 

             Allen L. Brown, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

 

 

_________________________________ 

Heather Soyars, City Clerk  

 

 

APPROVED: 

 

 

_________________________________ 

Joshua L. Potter, City Attorney 

 



 

CITY OF TEXARKANA, AR 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

AGENDA TITLE: Adopt an Ordinance to rezone a parcel of land located on the Northeast 

corner of Grand Avenue and 37th Street from R-3 Low-density 

residential to R-4 Medium-density residential. (WARD 4) (PWD-

Planning) City Planner Mary Beck 

The applicant requests an emergency clause. An emergency clause 

requires a separate and distinct vote of the board and is valid only if 

there is a two-thirds vote of approval by the board. (Hdbk. Const. 

Amend 7) 

AGENDA DATE: July 3, 2023 

ITEM TYPE: Ordinance☒  Resolution☐  Other☐:  

DEPARTMENT: Public Works/Planning 

PREPARED BY: Mary Beck 

REQUEST: A developer Brandon Kennedy is requesting a rezoning from R-3 Low-

density residential to an R-4 Medium-density residential zone in order 

to build a three-section townhouse at the corner of Grand Avenue and 

37th Street for rental property.  Currently the zoning requirements would 

only allow for a two-section townhouse as the property has less than the 

15,000 feet required for three family units in that zone.   

EMERGENCY CLAUSE: An emergency clause is requested to be able to begin construction.   

SUMMARY: The Planning Commission recommendation is approval of this rezoning 

with no opposition voted.  Because housing needs are at a premium 

development of residential properties is being encouraged to meet those 

needs. 

EXPENSE REQUIRED: 0 

AMOUNT BUDGETED: 0 

APPROPRIATION 

REQUIRED: 

0 

RECOMMENDED 

ACTION: 

Adoption of a rezoning ordinance is recommended by the Planning 

Commission.      

EXHIBITS: Ordinance, Memo to Acting City Manager, deeds, map segment.  

 



ORDINANCE NO. _________ 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING ORDINANCE NO. 

K-286, AS AMENDED; FOR DECLARING AN 

EMERGENCY; AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES 

 
WHEREAS, an application to amend the Land Use Plan was filed with the 

Planning Commission of the City of Texarkana, Arkansas, requesting the following 

described land located on the Northeast corner of Grand Avenue and 37th Street, be rezoned, 

as applicable, from R-3 Low density residential to R-4 Medium-density residential: 

 

ALL OF LOTS NUMBERED SEVEN (7) AND EIGHT (8) IN BLOCK 

NUMBERED TEN (10) OF COUNTY AVENUE COLLGE HEIGHTS 1ST 

ADDITION TO THE CITY OF TEXARKANA, MILLER COUNTY, 

ARKANSAS 

 

 WHEREAS, the Planning Commission, after public hearing, has approved said 

application and recommended that the Board of Directors of the City of Texarkana, 

Arkansas, adopt the ordinance affecting said rezoning request; and   

  NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Board of Directors of the City 

of Texarkana, Arkansas that:  

 

Section 1. Ordinance No. K-286, as amended, should be amended to rezone the 

above-described property in the City of Texarkana, Arkansas, from R-3 Low density 

residential to R-4 Medium-density residential.  This is solely a rezoning and no other 

action, conveyance, or release of interest.   

 

Section 2. This action being necessary for the preservation of the public peace, 

health and safety, and a separate and distinct vote having been taken on this emergency 

clause, an emergency is therefore declared to exist, and this ordinance shall be in full force 

and effect from and after its passage and approval. 

  



PASSED AND APPROVED this 3rd day of July, 2023.   

      

 _________________________________ 

             Allen L. Brown, Mayor 

 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

_________________________________ 

Heather Soyars, City Clerk  

 

 

APPROVED: 

 

 

_________________________________ 

Joshua L. Potter, City Attorney 









 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

Planning Review 
 

Prepared by: 
Planning Division - Public Works Department 

City of Texarkana, Arkansas 

 



 

 
 

  
 

CITY OF TEXARKANA, ARKANSAS 
DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 
216 WALNUT STREET 71854-6024 
PO BOX 2711 – TEXARKANA, ARKANSAS 75504-2711 
PHONE (870) 779-4971 – FAX (870) 773-2395 

 

MEMORANDUM 
 

 

 
TO:   TyRhonda Henderson, Acting City Manager 

FROM: Mary Beck, City Planner 

DATE: June 14, 2023 

SUBJECT: Board of Directors Agenda item for July 3, 2023 – Request by Brandon 
Kennedy, KRE Holdings, LLC, 3413 East Broad Street, Texarkana, AR 71854-9345, in 
order to rezone from R-3 Low-density residential to R-4 Medium density residential in 
order to build townhouses. The location of the property is the corner of Grand Avenue 
and E. 37th Street.    
LEGAL DESCRIPTION:   

The property is legally described as Lots 7 & 8, Block 10, COUNTY AVENUE COLLEGE 
HEIGHTS 1ST SUBDIVISION, Texarkana, Miller County, Arkansas, and contains .3 acres 
more or less. 
   
REASON FOR REQUEST: 

The planned construction of income producing rental property in the current zoning 
would allow for two-dwelling units whereas the rezoning would allow for three 
townhouses instead of two.   
  

 
COMPATIBILITY WITH EXISTING ZONING: 
  

EXISTING LAND USES: Site:      vacant residential lot 
North:   single-family dwelling 
East      single-family dwelling 
South:   single-family dwelling 
West:    single-family dwelling 

  
EXISTING ZONING: Site:      R-3 Low-density residential  

North:    R-3 Low-density residential    
South:   R-3 Low-density residential     
East:     R-3 Low-density residential  
West:     R-3 Low-density residential    



 

 

CONFORMANCE WITH APPLICABLE ORDINANCES AND/OR STATE STATUTES: 
 

The Arkansas Code of 1987 Annotated (14-56-422B) requires the following 
– “All plans, recommended ordinances, and regulations shall be adopted 
through the following procedure for adoption of plans and regulations: 
 
 (A) The Planning Commission shall hold a public hearing on the plans, 
ordinances, and regulations proposed under this subchapter. 
 

The 1988 Long term comprehensive plan recommends single-family land use in this 
area and the majority of the surrounding areas.  The majority of the zoning is R-3 Low-
density residential and R-4 Medium-density residential that both allow for development 
of duplexes and townhomes.  The requested R-4 zoning is a slightly higher density 
requiring only 4000 sq. ft. per family instead of the 5,000 sq. ft. required by the current 
R-3 zone.  With many vacant lots in the City where spot blight housing has been 
demolished development such as these townhouses have room to be constructed to 
fill the need for low and medium cost rental units that are in high demand.  With 
adequate infrastructure in place to serve the property and similar surrounding land 
usage, no conflicts are anticipated.   
 

Zoning 
District 

     Setbacks    

Use 
Lot Area 
(Square 

Feet) 

Lot Area 
Per Family 

Lot Width 
At 

Building 
Line 

Lot 
Coverage 
Max. % 

Front Y
ard 

Interior 
     Side Yard      
Exterior Corner 

Lot       
Rear 

Yard> 

     Maximum      
Height       

Backing 
Up To 
Side 
Yard 

Backing 
Up To 
Rear 
Yard 

Stories Feet 

R-3  Townhouses  5,000c  5,000c  22d  40  25  5e  25  10  25  3  36  

R-4 Townhouses  4,000c  4,000c  22d  60  25  5e  25  10  20  3  36  

UTILITIES & TRANSPORTATION NETWORK: 
 
 Local :              Grand Avenue 

                         37th Street 
Collector:          none 
Arterial:             none 

 Water:               6” in Grand Avenue 
Sewer:              6” in alley 
Fire hydrant:    E. 37th Street & Senator Street  
                        approximately 200’ from the property    
   



(B)  Notice of public hearing shall be published in a newspaper of general 
circulation in the city, at least (1) time fifteen days prior to the hearing. 
 
(2) Following the public hearing, proposed plans may be adopted, and 
proposed ordinance and regulations may be recommended as presented, 
or in modified form, by a majority vote of the entire commission.   
 
(3) Following it adoption of plans and recommendation of ordinances and 
regulations, the commission shall certify adopted plans of recommended 
ordinances of and regulations to the legislative body of the city for its 
adoption. 
 
(4) The legislative body of the city may return the plans and recommended 
ordinances and regulations to the commission for further study or 
rectification, or, by a majority vote of the entire membership, may, by 
ordinance or resolution, adopt the plans and recommended ordinances or 
regulations submitted by the commission.  However, noting in this 
subchapter shall be construed to limit the city board’s authority to recall the 
ordinances and resolutions by a vote of a majority of the council.  
 
(5) Following adoption by the legislative body, the adopted plans, 
ordinances, and regulations shall be filed in the office of the City Clerk.  The 
City Clerk shall file, with the county recorder of the counties in which 
territorial jurisdiction is being exercised such plans, ordinances, and 
regulations as pertain to the territory beyond the corporate limits.  
 
The required notice was published in the Sunday, May 28, 2023, edition of 
the Texarkana Gazette.  The City notified twenty-seven (27) property 
owners by regular postal mail within three hundred feet (300’) as required 
by the Texarkana, Arkansas Code of Ordinances.            

 
OPPOSITION: 
   None to date. 
 
PLANNING COMMISSION CERTIFICATION: 
 
  The Planning Commission met on June 13, 2023, and on a motion by Mr. 
Adger Smith, seconded by Mr. Mike Jones to approved passed 7-0 without  
opposition.  All commissioners were present. 
 
    Anderson Neal  Yes 
    Mike Jones  Yes 
                                           Boots Thomas Yes 
    Adger Smith  Yes 
    Bertha Dunn  Yes 
    Jason Dupree Yes 
    Randall Hickerson Yes 
       
BOARD OF DIRECTORS ACTION REQUESTED: 



 
Consider the recommendation for approval of the Planning Commission to adopt an 
ordinance to change zoning from R-3 Low-density residential to R-4 Medium-density 
residential zoning on the parcel located on the NE corner of Grand Avenue and 37th 
Street.    The Arkansas Code of 1987 Annotated requires every ordinance to be read 
three times before adoption.  These three readings may all occur at the same meeting 
or at the second and third subsequent meetings after the first reading of the ordinance.   
 



 

CITY OF TEXARKANA, AR 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

AGENDA TITLE: Adopt an Ordinance to approve the City of Texarkana, Arkansas, 

Comprehensive Plan. (PWD-Planning) City Planner Mary Beck 

AGENDA DATE: July 3, 2023 

ITEM TYPE: Ordinance☒  Resolution☐  Other☐:  

DEPARTMENT: Public Works/Planning 

PREPARED BY: Mary Beck 

REQUEST: Adopt the comprehensive plan prepared by Garver, planning 

professionals, by ordinance.   

EMERGENCY CLAUSE: N/A 

SUMMARY: A planning document is required by the State of Arkansas for 

municipalities “related to safety, morals, order, convenience, prosperity, 

and general welfare of citizens” quoted from a summary of A.C.A. 14-

56-401-426.     

Requirements include: 

A Master Street Plan 

A Land Use Plan 

A Community Facilities Plan 

Considerations include territorial jurisdiction one mile beyond the City 

limits 

Home types  

 

EXPENSE REQUIRED: 0 

AMOUNT BUDGETED: 0 

APPROPRIATION 

REQUIRED: 

0 

RECOMMENDED 

ACTION: 

Adopt an ordinance.   

EXHIBITS: Ordinance, summary of Arkansas State Statute requiring a plan, and a 

copy of the draft consolidated plan. 

 



ORDINANCE NO. _________ 

AN ORDINANCE APPROVING THE CITY OF 

TEXARKANA, ARKANSAS COMPREHENSIVE 

PLAN; AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES 

 
WHEREAS, a planning document is required by the State of Arkansas for 

municipalities “related to safety, morals, order, convenience, prosperity, and general 

welfare of citizens” (A.C.A. 14-56-401to 406); and  

WHEREAS, Garver, LLC., who the City previously hired to prepare an updated, 

modern comprehensive plan, has submitted the attached plan for approval; and   

  NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Board of Directors of the City 

of Texarkana, Arkansas, that the Comprehensive Plan, which is attached hereto and made 

part hereof as though set out in full, is hereby approved.   

 PASSED AND APPROVED this 3rd day of July, 2023.   

 

      

 ________________________________ 

                Allen L. Brown, Mayor 

 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

_________________________________ 

Heather Soyars, City Clerk  

 

 

APPROVED: 

 

 

_________________________________ 

Joshua L. Potter, City Attorney 

 



Summary of A.C.A. 14-56-401 – 426 
 

Arkansas Code/Local Government/Municipal Government/ 
Municipal Building and Zoning Regulations - Planning 

 
Purpose: 
 
Plans should promote both present and projected needs related to safety, morals, order, convenience, 
prosperity, and general welfare of citizens thru coordinated, adjusted and harmonious development. 
 
Plans should provide for: 

1) Efficiency and economy of the process of development 
2) Appropriate and best use of land 
3) Convenience of traffic and circulation of people and goods 
4) Safety from fire and other dangers 
5) Adequate light and air in the use and occupancy of buildings 
6) Healthful and convenient distribution of population 
7) Good civic design and arrangement 
8) Adequate public utilities and facilities 
9) Wise and efficient expenditure of funds 

 

Requirements: 
 

1) Shall prepare a Planning Area Map showing location of streets, public ways, public property and 
boundaries of the area, including territorial jurisdiction, for which it will prepare plans, 
ordinances and regulations.  This is to be filed with the city clerk and county recorder. 

2) Shall conduct Comprehensive Studies of present conditions as well as probable growth of the 
municipality and its neighboring territory. To be conducted after preparation of the Planning 
Area Map but before the Plan. 

3) May prepare Plans of Area for all, or any  portion of, the area encompassed by the map to 
consist of maps, plats, charts, diagrams, necessary documents and descriptive matter:  Plan of 
Area may include but not limited to: 

 
a. Master street plan 

i. Designate the general location, characteristics and functions of streets and 
highways 

ii. Locations of streets and highways to be reserved for future acquisition 
iii. Provide for the removal, relocation, widening, narrowing, vacating, 

abandonment, change of use or extension of any public ways 
 

Following filing of a master street plan, regulations regarding the development of land 
should be enacted to include: 

i. Provision of access to lots and parcels 
ii. Extension or provision of utilities 

iii. Subdividing land into lots and blocks 
iv. Parceling of land 
v. Procedure for plat approval 



May include: 
i. Minimum requirements regarding information to be provided on the plat 

ii. Design and layout of subdivisions 
iii. Standards for improvements to be installed by developer 

a. Grading and pavement 
b. Curbs, gutters and sidewalks 
c. Water, storm and sewer mains 
d. Lighting 

iv. The reservation for future acquisition of land for public or community use 
v. Established set backs 

vi. Control of entry onto major street and highways 
 

b. Land use plan 
i. The preservation or reservation of open spaces 

ii. Preservation of natural and historical features, sites and monuments 
iii. Existing uses to be retained without change 
iv. Existing uses proposed for change 
v. Areas of new development 

vi. Areas of redevelopment, rehabilitation, renewal or similar programs 
 

Following filing of a land use plan, a zoning ordinance consisting of the following should 
be submitted: 

 
Shall include: 

i. Both text and maps 
ii. Provisions for administration and enforcement 
iii. Designate districts or zones of such shape, size and characteristics as 

deemed advisable 
iv. Allow for uniform regulations in all districts 
v. Allow and regulate home-based work 
vi. Allow for a Board of Adjustments 

    
May include: 

i. Location, height, bulk, number of stories and size of buildings, open space, 
lot coverage, density, distribution of population 

ii. Off street parking and loading requirements 
iii. Districts, of compatible uses, for large scale unified development, for 

eliminate of uses not in conformance with the ordinance and for matters 
necessary for the health, safety and general welfare of the public. 

 
c. Community facilities plan 

i. Facilities such as schools, playgrounds, recreational areas, hospitals, special 
education facilities and cultural facilities 

ii. Governmental buildings and areas 
iii. Public and private utility terminals and lines 
iv. Transportation terminals and lines 
v. Areas to be reserved for future public acquisition or use 

 



Territorial jurisdiction is one mile beyond corporate limits. 
 

Considerations: 
 

1) Mobile and Manufactured Homes: 
a. Definition:  "Manufactured home" means a dwelling unit constructed in a factory in 

accordance with the federal standards and meeting the definitions set forth in the 
federal standards and under § 20-25-102.   "Mobile home" means a dwelling unit 
constructed in a factory before the enactment of the federal standards 

b. Shall allow the placement of manufactured homes on individually owned lots in at least 
one (1) or more residential zones. 

c. May prohibit the placement of mobile homes in all residential zones or restrict the 
placement to designated mobile home parks, subdivisions or land-lease communities 
 

2) Family Homes I & II: 
a. "Family Home I" means a community-based residential home licensed by the division 

that provides room and board, personal care, habilitation services, and supervision in a 
single-family environment for not more than eight (8) developmentally disabled 
persons.  "Family Home II" means a community-based residential home licensed by the 
division that provides room and board, personal care, habilitation services, and 
supervision in a multifamily environment for more than eight (8) but fewer than sixteen 
(16) developmentally disabled persons; 

b.  A Family Home I and II are residential uses of property for the purposes of zoning and 
shall be treated as permitted uses in all residential zones or districts.   

 
 
 
 
















































































	Top
	1.	Parks & Rec month
	2.	Employee Service Awards
	item_2_07032023_ccd_employee service awards

	3.	Minutes
	item_07032023_ccd_minutes
	item_3_06202023_minutes

	4.	Chemicals for Water and Wastewater Treatment
	item_4_07032023_twu_FY2023-2024 Chemical Bid Agenda
	Item 4 Chemical Purchase
	item_07032023_twu_FY2023-2024 Chemical Bids

	5.	TWU-Bonds Engagement of and Disclosures by Raymond James & Associates, Inc. as Underwriter or Placement Agent for the Waterworks and Sewer Facilities Revenue and/or Refunding Bonds Series 2023
	item_5_07032023_twu_Waterworks Sewer Fac Bonds 2023
	item 5_AR City Resolution - Fac Bd TWU - Conditional Authorization v.2(1647212.2)
	ATTH01 Ltr from Raymond James
	Ordinance No. K-9
	Ordinance No. K-150

	6.	Rules of Order
	item_6_07032023_bod_amend rules of order
	Item 6 Rules of Order
	item_6_07032023_bod_Rules of Order and Procedure Manual
	item_6_07032023_bod_Draft_Proposed Rules of Order and Procedure Manual

	7.	watchguard
	item_9_07032023_tapd_Watchguard Body Camera Board Form
	item_9_07032023_tapd_Texarkana PD (38)V700wEL5
	item_9_07032023_tapd_Purchase Request Form Body Cameras 2023-1
	Item 9 Body Cams

	8.	rezoning_grand_&_37th
	item_6_07032023_pwdpl_Rezone 37th & grand
	Item 7 Rezone
	verification of BK authority of KRE
	deed kre for rezone at 37th 7 grand
	map for letters 37st rezone
	item_07032023_pwd_Memo to CM rezone grand ave & 37th st

	9.	comp plan
	item_7_07032023_pwdpl_comp plan_Agenda item
	Item 8 Comprehensive Plan
	Summary of 14-56-401 to 426
	Print_Version_Texarkana_Final_Plan_Document

	Bottom

